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CHAIRMAN’S ADDRESS

AT THE SEVENTH (7™) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING HELD ON 12™ AUGUST 2024

—_—

Dear Shareholders,

| am delighted to welcome you all at the Seventh (7") Annual General Meeting of Ircon
Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IrconDHHL) and present the Audited Statements for the
Financial year 2023-24. | would like to thank each one of you for making it convenient for

joining this meeting.

| would like to place before you, few highlights of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
(IrconDHHL).

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IrconDHHL), a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon
International Limited (IRCON) incorporated on May 11, 2017 as a Special Purpose Vehicle
(SPV) with the main object to execute “Six-laning of Davanagere- Haveri from km 260+000 to
km 338+923 of NH-48 (old NH- 4) in the State of Karnataka, to be executed as Hybrid Annuity
Mode on Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis under NHDP Phase-
V” in accordance with the terms of the Concession Agreement, signed with the National
Highways Authority of India (NHAI) on June 19, 2017.



The concession period of the project comprises of construction period of 912 days (30 months)
commencing from the Appointed Date i.e. January 24, 2018 (as fixed by NHAI) and operation
and maintenance period of 15 years commencing from COD, with the total project bid cost is
1177 Crore plus escalation excluding Operation & Maintenance (O&M) cost. The scope of
work comprises of six-laning of 78.923 Km (total length of Highway) of existing four lane main
carriageway along with construction of 154.654 Km of service road length including major
bridges, culverts, Vehicular underpasses, pedestrian underpasses, flyovers and other allied

works.

The Scheduled date of completion of project was 24.07.2020. NHAI had approved Extension
of Time (EOT) for the Project on account of COVID-19 upto 28.05.2021 and issued Provisional
Completion Certificate (PCC) w.e.f 28.05.2021. Accordingly, from the said date, the project
had entered into operation and maintenance phase for the period of 15 years. The first 06(six)
annuity payments have been received along with O&M payments and 7th annuity payment is
due on 24.11.2024.

The Operation and Maintenance contract for the completed works was initially awarded by
IrconDHHL to M/s G R Engineers, Mathura (U.P) for 2 years from 07.10.2021 & extension of
the Contract was granted upto 31.01.2024. Subsequently, the work for a further period of
O&M for 2 years has been awarded to IRCON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (IRCON) vide LOA
dated 22.12.2023. Now, the responsibility of the O&M work from 01.02.2024 onwards has
been entrusted to IRCON.

Due to hindrances not attributable to the Company, the Authority had descoped the work of
6.88 Km of Main Carriage Way, 49.848 Km of Service Road and Project facilities. On request
for rescoping of descoped work by the Company, NHAI has rescoped the work. A Settlement
Agreement for the execution of balance scope of work has been signed on 25.04.2023 and
the work is to be completed within the execution target of 18 months i.e upto 31.10.2024.
Thus, completing the entire scope of work as envisaged in the Concession Agreement as per
Original Bid Project Cost. The rescoped works are being executed by the EPC Contractor
(IRCON).

Financial Performance

During the year, IrconDHHL achieved Total Income of %13,197.40 Lakhs (including other
income of ¥6322.48 Lakhs and profit/(Loss) after tax for the Financial Year 2023-24 of
32387.82 Lakhs.



IrconDHHL has availed Term Loan facility of ¥502.76 Crore from Punjab National Bank (PNB)

to finance the project.

During the year, out of the total sanctioned Term Loan of ¥502.76 Crore, ¥362.97 Crore has
been disbursed by PNB.

Compliances and Disclosures

Compliance and Disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and its associated rules there
under are fully being adhered to. CPSE’s constituted as Special Purposed (SPV) are
exempted from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs.

Hence, Corporate Governance guidelines of DPE are not applicable on your Company.
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)

Memorandum of Understanding (MoU): Your Company has requested IRCON to grant it
exemption from compliance of Annual MoU exercise for the financial year 2024-25, in line with
the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines issued by Department of Public
Enterprises (DPE) dated 6™ February, 2024 and IRCON vide its letters dated 215t March 2024
has granted exemption to the Company from compliance of Annual MOU exercise for the

financial year 2024-25.

Acknowledgements

I, on behalf of Board of Directors, express my heartfelt thanks for the valuable assistance and
co-operation extended to the Company by Ministry of Road, Transport & Highways (MoRTH),
National Highways Authority of India (NHAI), Ircon International Limited and the Auditors of
the Company. | acknowledge the efforts of the Company’s employees, who are our most
valuable asset. Their dedication, intellect, hard work, and deep sense of value has been the

key to take our company forward.

We look forward to your continued support in our journey ahead.

For and on behalf of

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited

Sd/-

Yogesh Kumar Misra
Chairman
DIN: 07654014
Date: 02.08.2024

Place: New Delhi
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Dear Members,

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 7" Annual Report together with the

Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,2024.

1. BUSINESS OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS: PRESENT STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IrconDHHL), a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon
International Limited (IRCON) incorporated on May 11, 2017 as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV)
with the main object to execute “Six-laning of Davanagere- Haveri from km 260+000 to km
338+923 of NH-48 (old NH- 4) in the State of Karnataka, to be executed as Hybrid Annuity Mode
on Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis under NHDP Phase-V” in
accordance with the terms of the Concession Agreement, signed with the National Highways
Authority of India (NHAI) on June 19, 2017.

The concession period of the project comprises of construction period of 912 days (30 months)
commencing from the Appointed Date i.e. January 24, 2018 (as fixed by NHAI) and operation and
maintenance period of 15 years commencing from COD, with the total project bid cost is 1177
Crore plus escalation excluding Operation & Maintenance (O&M) cost. The scope of work
comprises of six-laning of 78.923 Km (total length of Highway) of existing four lane main
carriageway along with construction of 154.654 Km of service road length including major bridges,

culverts, Vehicular underpasses, pedestrian underpasses, flyovers and other allied works.

The Scheduled date of completion of project was 24.07.2020. NHAI had approved Extension of
Time (EOT) for the Project on account of COVID-19 upto 28.05.2021 and issued Provisional
Completion Certificate (PCC) w.e.f 28.05.2021. Accordingly, from the said date, the project had
entered into operation and maintenance phase for the period of 15 years. The first 06(six) annuity
payments have been received along with O&M payments and 7th annuity payment is due on
24.11.2024.

The Operation and Maintenance contract for the completed works was initially awarded by
IrconDHHL to M/s G R Engineers, Mathura (U.P) for 2 years from 07.10.2021 & extension of the
Contract was granted upto 31.01.2024. Subsequently, the work for a further period of O&M for
2 years has been awarded to IRCON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED vide LOA dated 22.12.2023.
Now, IRCON has assumed the responsibility of the O&M work from 01-02-2024 onwards.

Due to hindrances not attributable to the Company, the Authority had descoped the work of 6.88
Km of Main Carriage Way, 49.848 Km of Service Road and Project facilities. On request for
rescoping of descoped work by the Company, NHAI has rescoped the work. A Settlement
Agreement for the execution of balance scope of work has been signed on 25.04.2023 and the

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2023-24
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work is to be completed within the execution target of 18 months i.e. upto 31.10.2024. Thus,

completing the entire scope of work as envisaged in the Concession Agreement as per Original

Bid Project Cost. The rescoped works are being executed by the EPC Contractor (IRCON).

2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

In pursuance of the provisions enumerated under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2015, the Company, has prepared its annual financial statements for the Financial Year
2023-24 as per Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS).

Financial performance indicators as on 31 March 2024:

(Amount in ¥ In Lakh)

For the Year For the Year
S.No. | Particulars Ended Ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1. Equity Share Capital 17,300.00 17,300.00
2. Other Equity (includes Reserves and Surplus) 7,417.10 5029.27
3. Net Worth 24,717.10 22329.27
4, Borrowings (Long term) 32,217.45 34729.61
5. Total Assets and Liabilities 61,126.57 61797.48
6. Revenue from Operations 6874.92 1975.25
7. Other Income 6,322.48 5683.19
8. Total Income (6) + (7) 13,197.40 7658.44
9. Profit Before Tax (8)-(11) 3212.67 3471.18
10. Profit/(Loss) After Tax 2387.82 2637.04
11. Balance of Profit/loss for earlier years 3643.27 1006.23
12. Balance carried forward 6031.09 3643.27

During the year, IrconDHHL achieved Total Income of ¥13,197.40 Lakhs (including other income
of ¥6322.48 Lakhs) and profit/(Loss) after tax for the Financial Year 2023-24 of ¥2387.82 Lakhs.

During the FY 2023-24, CARE Ratings Limited has provided AA- (Double A Stable) rating for
the long-term bank facilities of ¥275.04 Crore to your Company.

3. DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATION TO RESERVE:

The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2023-24.

As per the applicability of IND AS, Reserves are reflected as Retained Earnings under the head

‘Other Equity’ in Financial Statements and your Company has a balance of ¥6,031.09 Lakhs in

Retained Earnings as on March 31, 2024.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2023-24
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4. SHARE CAPITAL/ DEMATERIALISATION:

The Authorized Share Capital and the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on 315 March
2023 is ¥217.05 Crore comprising of 21,70,50,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each and %173 Crore
comprising of 17,30,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each, respectively. During the year under
review, there was no change in the share capital of your Company and Ircon International Limited
(IRCON) continues to hold 100% paid-up share capital of IrconDHHL.

As per Rule 9A of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Amendment Rules,
2019 dated 22.01.2019, the Company being a wholly owned subsidiary (WOS) is not required to
get its securities in dematerialised form.

5. CASH FLOWS FROM THE PROJECT:

The total -Cash Flows from the project activities during the year is ¥1,065.38 Lakh.

6. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

For the period under review there was no Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies of the

Company.

7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL.:

Board of Directors:

CATEGORY & NAME OF THE DIRECTORS WITH DESIGNATION DURING THE YEAR 2023-
24

During the year under review, the holding Company [IRCON] had nominated Shri Yogesh Kumar
Misra [having DIN: 07654014], as the Chairman / Part-time Director (Additional Director) of your
Company, vice Shri Devendra Kumar Sharma w.e.f. February, 01, 2024. Shri Devendra Kumar
Sharma ceased to be the Director of your Company consequent to withdrawal of nomination by
the holding Company [IRCON] w.e.f. January, 31, 2024.

Ms. Aradhana Garg, JGM/Finance, IRCON (DIN: 10477168), was nominated as Part-time Director
(Additional Director) of your Company w.e.f. January 23, 2024 in terms of letter issued by the
holding Company [IRCON].

As per Atrticles of Association of the Company, the Board of the Company is appointed by the
holding company, IRCON. As on 31.03.2024, total no. of Directors is Four (4) including Chairman
and all the directors are nominated by the Holding Company. During the FY 2024, Company’s

management is headed by the following Non-Executive (Nominee) Directors: -

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2023-24 1
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Category, Name & Designation Appointment or Cessation (during the
year, if any)

Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma, | 08556821 | Cessation w.e.f. 31.01.2024

Chairman

Mr. Yogesh Kumar Misra, Chairman | 07654014 | Appointed w.e.f. 01.02.2024

Mr. Masood Ahmad, Director 09008553 | -

Mr. Rohit Parmar, Director 08190141 | Cessation w.e.f. 24.04.2024
Ms. Ritu Arora, Director 00002455 | Cessation w.e.f. 16.11.2023
Ms. Aradhana Garg 10477168 | Appointment w.e.f. 23.01.2024

Mr. Yogesh Kumar Misra, Director (DIN: 07654014), Ms. Aradhana Garg, Director,
(DIN:10477168) were appointed as Additional Part-time Directors of the Company w.e.f. 1%
February 2024 and 23 January 2024 respectively, who holds their office upto the date of ensuing
Annual General Meeting and their appointments are proposed to be regularized at the ensuing

AGM of the Company and has been included in the notice of ensuing AGM.

After closure of the FY, the Holding Company, IRCON had nominated Mr. Rabindra Kumar Jaiswal,
CGM/ Finance/ Tax, IRCON, (DIN No. 10610969) as Nominee Director w.e.f. 30" April 2024 in
place of Mr. Rohit Parmar.

The Company has received a notices under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from Mr.
Yogesh Kumar Misra, Mr. Rabindra Kumar Jaiswal and Ms. Aradhana Garg giving their
candidature for appointment as Directors, liable to retire by rotation, in the ensuing Annual

General Meeting.

During the year, Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma, Mr. Rohit Parmar and Ms. Ritu Arora, ceased to
be Directors of the Company and the Board placed on record its appreciation for their valuable
contribution and guidance and support given by them during their tenure as Directors of the

Company.

Mr. Masood Ahmad, Director (DIN 09008553) retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment. A resolution seeking shareholders’ approval for her re-appointment along with

other required details forms part of the Notice.

None of the Directors is disqualified from being appointed/re-appointed as Director.

Key Managerial Personnel:

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2023-24 13



HEDMamml

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act 2013, the Key Managerial

Personnel (KMP) of the Company during the FY 2024 are as follows:

Name ‘ Designation

Mr. Goutam Kumar Mishra

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Mahadeb Mandal

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Pradeep Kumar Baisoya

Company Secretary

8. Board Meetings:

During the FY 2023-24, the Board met Five (5) times on 12.05.2023, 01.08.2023, 12.10.2023,
02.11.2023 and 31.01.2024. The interval between the Board Meetings was within the period

prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The attendance detail of the Board Meetings is as

follows:

12.05.2023

01.08.2023

12.10.2023

02.11.2023

31.01.2024

B I SN S N

BN I S ) S

The table below shows attendance of the Board members at the Board Meetings held during
the FY 2023-24 and their attendance in the last Annual General Meeting (AGM):

Name of Director Meeting Date

Whether
attended last
AGM held on

04.08.2023

Total No. of % of
Meetings Meetings Attenda
held during attended nce
the tenure

12.05.2023

01.08.2023

12.10.2023

02.11.2023

31.01.2023

Mr.DevendraKumar | v | v | vV | vV | ¥ v 6 6 100
Sharma (upto

31.01.2024)

Ms. Ritu Arora v | vV |V |V - v 6 6 100
(upto 16.11.2023)

Mr. Masood Ahmad v | v | x|V | VY v 6 5 67

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2023-24
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Mr. Rohit Parmar v | vV |V |V | V¥ - 5 5 100

Ms. Aradhana Garg - -l - -V - 1 1 100
(w.e.f 23.01.2024)

Mr. Yogesh Kumar - - - | - - - - o -
Misra (w.e.f.
01.02.2024)

9. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS & BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
GUIDELINES ISSUED BY DPE:

In terms of notification dated July 5, 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) inter-
alia amending rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,
an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary is exempted from the requirement of
appointing Independent Directors on its Board and requirement of constituting of the Board
Committees viz. Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC).

IrconDHHL, an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary company of IRCON, is,
therefore, not required to appoint any Independent Director on its Board and the declaration by

the Independent Directors is not applicable on the Company.

Further, in terms of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE)'s OM dated July 8-10, 2014 read with
OM dated July 11, 2019, CPSE’s constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted
from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs. Hence,

Corporate Governance guidelines of DPE are not applicable on IrconDHHL.

10. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Board of Directors of the Company confirms:

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2024, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgment and
estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year March 31, 2024 and of
the Profit & Loss of the Company for that period ended on that date;

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2023-24 15
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e) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

11. DIRECTORS’ OBSERVATION AND COMMENTS FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(EXPLANATION FOR ANY COMMENTS MADE BY AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT:

The Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements are self-explanatory and need no

further explanation.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report which require any

clarification/explanation.
12. AUDITORS:

Statutory Auditor:

M/s G A C S & Associates, Chartered Accountants, had been appointed as Statutory Auditors,
for the Financial year 2023-24 vide CAG letter No. CA. V/CQOY/ Central Government, IDHHL(1)333
dated 13.09.2023. They have confirmed by way of a written consent and certificate as required
under Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Cost Auditor:

The Board of Directors had reappointed M/s. Ravi Sahni & Co., Cost Accountants, as Cost Auditor
of the Company for the FY 2023-24 for conducting the audit of cost records maintained by the

Company as per the applicable Rules / Guidance Note, etc.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Act, read with the Companies (Cost

Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company has maintained cost accounts and records.

Secretarial Auditor:

The Board of Directors had re-appointed M/s. Jayesh Parmar & Associates, Company Secretary,
as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the FY 2023-24.

Internal Auditor:

The Board of Directors had appointed M/s Singhal Sunil & Associates, Chartered Accountants,

as Internal Auditors for the FY 2023-24, to conduct the Internal Audit of the Company.

13. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2023-24 16
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There are no transactions of loans, guarantees and investments as covered under the provisions

of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year under review.

14. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

During the year, the related party transactions with the holding company, IRCON were in the
ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and approved in terms of the Companies
Act 2013. The details of the related party transactions in form AOC-2 are enclosed to this report

as Annexure-1.

15. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY AFTER THE CLOSURE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company had

occurred in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

16. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

Every company having Net Worth of 500 crore or more or Turnover of 1000 crore or more or
Net Profit of 5 crore or more during the immediately preceding FY is required to spend in every
FY, at least 2% of average net profits of the company made during the three immediately

preceding FY in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy.

Since, the net profit of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 was %26.37
Crore which exceeds the above mentioned threshold limit, therefore, the provisions of CSR under

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 was applicable on the Company from FY 2023-24.

In terms of the provisions of sub-section (9) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
the amount to be spent by a company does not exceed Rs.50 lakhs, the requirement for
constitution of the CSR Committee shall not be applicable on the Company. During the period
under review, the CSR budget of the Company was Rs.29.30 Lakhs. Therefore, the requirement
for constitution of CSR Committee pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 was not

applicable to the Company.

During the year, CSR fund was allocated under following CSR activities:

i) to provide 03 nos. True lab Duo set at the cost of Rs.7,72,800/- (including GST) each & 01 no.
of True lab UnoDx set at the cost of Rs.5,82,400/- (including GST).

ii) to provide 40 nos (1 set) Mycobacterium tuberculosis kits(MTB) amounting to Rs.31,360/-
(including GST)

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2023-24 17
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for establishing the Rapid Molecular Test Lab (True Naat Laboraties) for TB Control under
National Tuberculosis Elimination Programme (NTEP) monitored through District Tuberculosis
Office, at Haveri location with the total estimated cost of Rs.29,32,160 (including GST).

The Annual report on CSR activities required under the Companies (Corporate Social

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is set out as Annexure-2 forming part of this report.

17. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule

8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out hereunder:

A. Conservation of enerqgy: -

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of

particulars is not applicable to the Company.

B. Technology absorption: -

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of

particulars is not applicable to the Company.

C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: -

There was no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Foreign Exchange Outgo during the year
2023-24.

18. RISK MANAGEMENT:

In the opinion of the Board, presently the Company does not foresee any major threat/risk to the

business of the Company.

19. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

As per Notification dated June 5, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government
Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies

Act, 2013 and corresponding rules under Chapter XIII.

IrconDHHL being a government company is not required to disclose information on the
remuneration of employees falling under the criteria prescribed under rule 5(2) of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), as a part of the Directors' Report.

20. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2023-24 18



Y//H1/117)

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year 2023-24.

21. PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

During the year under review, your Company has not invited any deposits from its members

pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

22. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate system of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. All the transactions were properly authorized, recorded and reported to the
Management. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly
maintaining the books of account and reporting in the financial statements. Your Company
continues to ensure proper and adequate systems and procedures commensurate with its size

and nature of its business.

23. SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS
IN FUTURE

No order has passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status

of the Company and its operations in future during the FY 2023-24.

24. COMPLIANCE OF MSME GUIDELINES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF PURCHASE
PREFERENCE POLICY

In exercise of powers conferred by section 9 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006, the Central Government issued instructions that all companies registered
under the Companies Act, 2013 with a turnover of more than ¥500 Crore and all CPSEs shall be
required to get themselves on-boarded on the Trade Receivables Discounting System (TReDS)
platform, set up as per the notification of the Reserve Bank of India. The Registrar of Companies
(RoC) in each State shall be the competent authority to monitor the compliance of such
instructions and also the Department of Public Enterprises, Government of India shall be the
competent authority to monitor the compliance of such instructions by the CPSEs. In compliance
with the above instruction, the Company has boarded on the TReDS platform w.e.f. 13.12.2019,
to facilitate the financing of trade receivables of MSEs by discounting of their receivables and

realisation of their payment before the due date.

25. DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2023-24 10
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During the period under review, there was no complaint pending at the beginning nor any
complaint relating to sexual harassment was reported pursuant Section 22 of The Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company, being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, ‘Policy for Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace’ of IRCON (POSH Policy) is applicable on the
Company and the Internal Complaints Committee of IRCON will deal with all the complaint, if any,
under POSH Act.

26. VIGIL MECHANISM:

The Company has established a mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns
about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the Code. It also provides for
adequate safeguards against the victimization of employees who avail the mechanism. Being a
wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, for employees nominated and deputed from IRCON, the
Whistle Blower Policy of IRCON is applicable, which is available on the website at,

https://www.ircon.org/images/file/cosecy/\Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf

For other persons in employment of the Company, complaint / reporting under Vigil Mechanism
can be addressed to:

Mr. Masood Ahmad, Director

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IrconDHHL)

Address: Ircon International Limited,

C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi- 110017

Phone No.: +919560595062

Email id: masood.ahmad@ircon.org

27. RIGHT TO INFORMATION:

No application under Right to Information Act, 2005 has been received by the company during
the FY 2023-24, however, RTI application transferred from DPE was duly replied during the FY
2023-24.

28. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD MEMBERS:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has, vide its notification dated 5th June 2015, notified the exemptions
to Government Companies from certain provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 which inter-alia
provides that Section 134(3)(p) regarding a statement indicating the manner of formal annual
evaluation of Board, shall not apply to Government Companies in case the Directors are
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evaluated by the Ministry which is administratively in charge of the Company as per its evaluation

methodology.

Further, the aforesaid circular issued by the MCA has also exempted that sub-sections (2), (3) &
(4) of Sec. 178 regarding the appointment, performance evaluation and remuneration shall not

apply to Directors of Government Companies.

Being a government company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited, all
part-time Directors are nominated by the holding company, IRCON. The evaluation of these
nominated directors is done by the holding company as per pre-defined criteria in line with the
guidelines of the Government of India.

29. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year, the Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued

by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

30. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The “Secretarial Audit Report” from the secretarial auditor in Form MR-3 as required under section
204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and is placed as Annexure-3.

31. STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT AND C&AG COMMENTS

The reports of the Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements for FY 2023-24 with nil
observation are attached separately as part of the Annual Report along with No review certificate
from Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) for the FY 2023-24.

32. APPLICATION/PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY CODE,
2016

There are no proceeding initiated/ pending against the Company under the Insolvency &

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company.

33. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MoU):

Pursuant to the provision of Consolidated Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines
dated 10" March, 2023 of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Companies, that are
subsidiary company of a CPSE, will sign Annual MoU with its holding company and holding
company is free to take a decision regarding exemption from MoU for its subsidiary companies

and process of exemption shall ordinarily be completed by 315t of March of the base year.
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In line with the MoU Guidelines of DPE, IRCON vide its letters dated 215 March, 2024 has granted

exemption to the Company from entering into MoU for the financial year 2024-25.

34. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

We thank Ircon International Limited, Ministry of Road Transport & Highways, Comptroller and
Auditors General of India (C&AG), Auditors and our valued client- National Highway Authority of

India for their support, and look forward to their continued support in the future.

We thank our Contractors, Sub-contractors, Bankers, for their continued support during the year.
We also place on record our appreciation for the contribution made by our employees at all levels.

Our consistent growth was made possible by their hard work, solidarity, cooperation and support.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Date: 02.08.2024 of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Place: New Delhi

Sd/-

Yogesh Kumar Misra
Chairman

DIN: 07654014
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ANNEXURE -1

FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso
thereto for the period ending in 31.03.2024

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis: as follows

Salient terms of the Date(s) of
Duration of the | Contracts or Amount
Nature of contracts approval :
Sr. contracts or | Arrangements or paid as
or arrangements or . by the

No. : arrangements or | Transactions . advances,

transactions . . . Board, if . )
transactions including the value, any: if any:
if any y:
Date: EPC
Agreement
EPC Agreement | 404 04.01.2018
(For Appointing Ircon
International Limited Duration:
as EPC Contractor Com Ieti.on eriod August 10,
for execution of is 30pmonth§ from Consideration: 2021,

1 project works of “Six Appointed date or Rs.916.93 February NIL (As
Laning of handing over of Cror% plus GST | 20,2018 & on Date)
Davanagere Haveri land b the @12%. November
from km 260+000 to | S0° ¥ T 9, 2017
km 338+923 of NH- |\ Z0gq" Lo o
48(0ld NH-4 ) in the |\ ier Further
state of Karnataka” ) ’

extended up to
31.10.2024.
Lease Agreement
Lease Agreement Estimated executed on 5" April | March 22,
To tak g | duration: 2023 for the period 2023 NIL (As
2, §h° pheonlease 3 years 01.04.2023 to (Resolution | 1% 0%
felRC(';’,fl remises | (1.04.2023 to 31.03.2025 at by
0 ) 31.03.2025) monthly rent of Rs. Circulation)
23,359/-.plus GST

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited

Sd/-

Yogesh Kumar Misra
Date: 02.08.2024 Chairman
Place: New Delhi DIN: 07654014
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ANNEXURE - 2

Annual Report on CSR & Sustainability
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is a company’s commitment to address social,
ethical and environmental concerns in which it operates and contribute to develop a
sustainable society through sustainability initiatives by conducting business in a manner
that is beneficial to both, business and society.

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IrconDHHL) is committed to undertake CSR
activities in accordance with provision of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 (“CSR Rules”), as
amended time to time and DPE Guidelines, 2014 (hereinafter collectively referred to as
“CSR laws”), with the former taking precedence over the later in case of any conflict.

The Company shall allocate the budget for CSR activities. The minimum budgeted amount
for a financial year shall be 2% of the average net profit (as defined under CSR Rules) of
three immediate preceding financial years. The Company may allocate more fund for the
CSR activities in any financial year than the amount prescribed under the Act.

The Company shall undertake CSR activities as per Schedule VII of the Act through
following three modes of implementation:

(a) Implementation by the Company itself;
(b) Implementation through eligible implementing agencies as prescribed in CSR Rules;

(c) Implementation in collaboration with one or more companies as prescribed in CSR
Rules.

If any amount spent in excess of requirement as per sub-section (5) of section 135, such
excess amount may be set off against the requirement to spend under sub-section (5) of
section 135 upto immediate succeeding three financial years subject to the conditions that:

i) the excess amount available for set off shall not include the surplus arising out of the
CSR activities, if any.

ii) the Board shall pass a resolution to that effect.

2. Composition of CSR Committee: As Company is not required to constitute a CSR
Committee as the CSR expenditure does not exceeding Rs.50 Lakhs.

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.: N.A.

4. Provide the execute summary along with web-link(s) of Impact assessment of CSR
projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 if applicable.:

Not applicable for this financial year. Further, none of the Completed CSR activities
taken up during FY 2023-24 were Rs.1 crore or above for which impact assessment
is required.

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Rs.1465
Lakhs.
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(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company asper section 135(5): Rs.29.30

Lakhs

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous

financial years: Nil

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-d)]: Rs.29.30 Lakhs

6. (in Lakhs)
(a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Projects and other Rs.29.32
than Ongoing Projects).

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : Nil
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable. : Nil
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: 29.32
(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
(in Lakhs)
Total Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Amount
Spent for the [Total Amount transferred Amount transerred to any fund specified
Financial [to Unspent CSR Account [under Schedule VIl as per second proviso
Year (in Rs.) @S per sub-section (6) of fto sub-section (5) of section 135.
section 135.
Amount. [Date of transfer. [Name of the Fund [Amount|Date of
. transfer.
29.32 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
(f) Excess amount for set off, if any
Sl. No. | Particular Amount
(Rs. in Lakhs)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as 29.30
per section 135(5)
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 29.32
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 0.02
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes 0.00
or activities of the previous financial years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial 0.02
years [(iii)-(iv)]
7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three
Financial Years:
[1 ] 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8
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SI. | Preceding Amount Balance | Amount Amount Amount Defi
No | Financial | transferred | Amount | Spentin | transferred to | remaining | cien
Year(s) to Unspent in the a Fund as to be cy,
CSR Unspent | Financial specified spent in if
Account CSR Year (in under succeedin | any
under sub- | Account Rs.) Schedule VIl | g Financial
section (6) under as per Years (in
of section sub- second Rs.)
135 (in section proviso to
Rs.) (6) of sub-section
section (5) of section
135 (in 135, if any
Rs.) Amoun | Dat
t (in e of
Rs.) Tran
sfer
1 2020-21
2 2021-22 Nil
3 2022-23
Nil

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

/7 Yes <~ No
T

If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/acquired:- No. of assets has created.

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social

Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: N.A.

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per section 135(5).: Not Applicable

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Date:02.08.2024
Place: New Delhi

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2023-24
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Sd/-
Yogesh Kumar Misra
Chairman
DIN: 07654014
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ANNEXURE -3

ﬂs ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANICAL YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH, 2024

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

M/s. IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
Regd. Office: Plot No. C-4, District Centre, Saket

New Delhi-110017

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate governance practice by IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI
HIGHWAY LIMITED having CIN: U45500DL2017GOI317401 (hereinafter called “the
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s Books, Papers, Minutes Books, Forms and Returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the financial year ended 31%
March, 2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2024 according to the

provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under;

(i1) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India:
Applicability of SS-1and SS-2;
(ii1) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there

under to the extent of foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment, External
Commercial Borrowings; wherever applicable, if any,

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-Executive

Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
year under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
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Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and on shorter notice with the consent of
Directors, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

We further report that compliance of applicable financial laws including Direct and Indirect Tax
laws by the Company has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same has been subject to
review by the Statutory Auditors and other designated professionals.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For Jayesh Parmar & Associates
Company Secretaries

(Proprietor)
Place: New Delhi ACS No.:27055
Date: May 06, 2024 C.P No.:15007

UDIN: A027055F000313101
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This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 'Annexure A' and forms
an integral part of this report.

To

Annexure A

The Members
M/s. IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express as opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We
believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books

of Accounts of the Company.

. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.
For Jayesh Parmar & Associates

(Proprietor)
Place: New Delhi ACS No.:27055
Date: May 06, 2024 C.P No.:15007

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2023-24
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G ACS & Associates 124, SF, Defence Enclave,

Chartered Accountants Vikas Marg,

New Delhi 110092

Mobile: 9313006697

Phone: 8368750617

Email: shashifca@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of

IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED,
C -4, District Centre,

Saket, New Delhi (IN) - 110 017

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statement

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of IRCON DAVANAGERE
HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED (“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Flows for the period then ended and Notes to the Financial Statements including a
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after
referred to as “Standalone Financial Statements”.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, as amended, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the period ended on the date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Com panies Act,
2013 and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements.

ey Audit Matters

dey\ audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
(/qmgniflcance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These
; jgy,mét- rs were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone financial statements as
I firliole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
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these matters.

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Ltd
Independent Auditor’s Report 31.03.2024

We have determined the matter(s) described below to be the key audit matters to be

communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the matter

Revenue Recognition in terms of Ind AS
115 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

The Company recognizes revenue for a
performance obligation satisfied over time
after estimating its progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation. The recognition of revenue
requires assessments and judgments to be
made on changes in work scope (de-scoping,
re-scoping), claims (compensation, rebates
etc.) and other payments to the extent
performance obligation is satisfied. The
company measures the performance
obligation by applying input method.

During order fulfillment, contractual
obligations may need to be reassessed. In
addition, change orders or cancelations have
to be considered. As a result, total estimated
project costs may exceed total contract
revenues and therefore require immediate
recognition of the expected loss.

Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise
judgement, taking into consideration all of the
relevant facts and circumstances when
applying each step of the model to contracts
with their customers.

Further, the explanation why we consider this
as a Key Audit Matter is as follows:

The application of the revenue accounting
standard involves certain key judgements
relating to identification of distinct
performance obligations, determination

of transaction price of the identified
performance obligations, the appropriateness
of the basis used to

| measure revenue recognized at a point in
time or over time. Additionally, revenue

\%.\c -ounting standard contains disclosures
dhich involves collation of information in
[gf;ﬁjpect of disaggregated revenue and periods

Our audit procedures included
considering the appropriateness of the
Company’s revenue recognition
accounting policies and assessing
compliance with the policies in terms of
the applicable accounting standards.

We performed following substantive
procedures:

 Read, analyzed and identified the
distinct performance obligations in the
contract.

e Compared the performance obligations
with that identified and recorded by the
Company.

e Checked whether the performance
obligation is being satisfied over the
period of time or at a point in time.

e Performed analytical procedures
for reasonableness of revenues
disclosed.

i)
O\
,»,u/
Al
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over which the remaining performance
obligations will be satisfied subsequent to the
balance sheet date.

For details refer Note 27 to the Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report
but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. Since we have not been provided with the copy of the
Board Report, we are unable to comment on that.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate actounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
-going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
- intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
'do 50 The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fina ncial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continuc as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

« We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
~significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
/with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with

\:C"/
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them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of ouraudit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), and the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Change
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. Inour opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. Being a government company, provision of section 164(2) of the Act are not
applicable pursuant to the notification No. G.S.R.463(E) dated 5th June 2015, issued
by the Central Government of India.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

g. Being a government company, provision of section 197 of the Act are not applicable
vide notification no. GSR 463 (E) dated 5th June 2015, issued by the Central
Government of India.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i, The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a
material impact on its financial position.

ii. Based on the assessment made by the Company, there are no material
foreseeable losses on long-term contracts that may require any provisioning.
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The Company did not have any derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. The Company has not proposed, declared or paid any final or interim dividend
during the period and until the date of this report, therefore, the reporting
under clause is not applicable.

vi. Based on our examination, which include test checks, the company has used
an accounting software (SAP) for maintaining its books of accounts which has
a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance
of audit trail feature being tempered with.

As Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 is applicable
from April 1 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rule 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory
requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024 being first year of its applicability.

As required by Section 143(5) of the Act and as per directions issued by Comptroller
and Auditor General of India, we report that:
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S.No

Directions

Auditor’s Replies

Whether the company has system in
place to process all the accounting
transactions through IT system? If yes,
the implications of processing of
accounting transactions outside IT
system on the Integrity of the accounts
along with the financial implications, if
any, may be stated.

Company is using SAP system to
process all the accounting
transactions. As per the information
and explanation provided to us no
accounting transactions have been
processed outside the IT System
except income billing for which no
financial implication were observed.

Whether there is any restructuring of
an existing loan or cases of
waiver/write off of debts / loans /
interest etc. made by a lender to the
company due to the company's
inability to repay the loan? If yes, the
financial impact may be stated.
Whether such cases are properly
accounted for? (In case, lender is a
Government company, then this
direction is also applicable for
statutory auditor of lender company).

No; Company is having no case of any
restructuring of an existing loan or
cases of waiver/write off of
debts/loans/interest etc. made by a
lender to the company due to the
company's inability to repay the loan.

Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.)
received/receivable  for  specific
schemes from Central/State
Government or its agencies were
properly accounted for/utilized as per
its term and conditions? List the cases
of deviation

According to the information and
explanation given to us and as per
our examination of records, no funds
have been received/receivable for
any specific scheme from
Central/State Government or its
agencies during the period from 1*
April 2023 to 31% March 2024.

,. For G A CS & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED/ ACCOUNTANTS

FRN: 0051
L

( CA. SHASHI GUPT

PARTNER

M. No. : 084110
UDIN
Place
Date

: New Delhi
: May 10, 2024
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ sectionof our
report to the Members of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i, In respect of Company'’s Fixed Assets:

(a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) The company is not having any intangible assets; hence this clause is not applicable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Fixed Assets have been physically
verified by the management in a phased manner at reasonable intervals, and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. Further, there is a regular program of verification,
which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its business

(d) The company does not own any immovable properties during the period of audit.

(e) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right of use of assets)
or intangible asset of both during the financial year;

(f) According to information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or
pending against company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder during the year.

il. In respect of Inventories:

The Company does not have any inventory and has no working capital limits in excess of Rs 5 Crores
in aggregate at any points of time during the period, from banks or financial institutions on the basis
of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

i, According to information and explanations given to us by the management and records produced
before us, the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security, granted
any loan or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships, and any other parties covered in the register required under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013, during the period. Hence reporting under Paragraph 3(iii) of the order is
not applicable to the Company.

iv. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us by the management and
records produced before us, the Company has not granted loans or provided any guarantees or given
any security or made any investment to which the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act 2013 are attracted. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

v, In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us by the management and
records produced before us, the Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed
to be deposits, Hence,reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

Vi, The Company has maintained cost records as required under section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013. However, we are neither required to carry out, nor have carried out any detailed examination
of such accounts and records.

vii. - In respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Income
‘rax goods and service Tax, Sales tax,service tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax,
> _ESs and any other statutory dues apphcable with the approprlate authontles Employees State
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to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, there are no undisputed statutory dues,
other than as stated below, which were outstanding as on 31.03.2024 for a period of more than
six months from the date the same become payable.

(b) Details of Statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on
31.03.2024 on account of dispute are given below:

S.No | Name of the Nature of the Amount (in Period to which | Forum where
Statue Dues lacs) the amounts Dispute is
related FY pending
1 | Income Tax Income Tax 225.62 2021-22 CIT(A)
2 Income Tax Income Tax 121.58 2022-23 CIT(A)
viii. According to the information and explanation given to us, and as per examination of records of the

Company, in our opinion, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that
have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the period in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

IX. In respect of loans and borrowings taken by the Company:

(a) Based on our review of accounts and as per information provided, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of loans or other borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon during the year
under audit.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(¢) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has applied term loan for
the purpose for which loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, funds raised on short- term basis, have
not been used during the period for long-term purposes by the Company.

() According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates
or joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not raised loans during
the year on the pledge of securities held in subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and associate companies
hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the period and hence reporting under clause 3(x) (a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) During the period, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Xi.
(a) According to information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material
_,;_--' ASS fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period.

f_ |f

’Q) I\wq port under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-
9 a"japrescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
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Government, during the period and upto the date of this report.

(¢) No whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the period (and upto the date of
this report), while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, and based on our examination of records
of the Company, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the period under audit, issued to the Company
during the period and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures.

According to the information and explanation given to us, and based on our examination of records of
the Company, during the period the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause
3(xvi) (d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the period covered by our audit.
There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the period.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

({Q 'Ihere is no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing

@2 ,j 1pr01ects for requiring a transfer to a fund specified in schedule VII to the companies Act in
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compliance with second proviso to sub section (5) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xx)( a) of the order is not applicable for the period.

(b) There is no amount remaining unspent under sub- section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act,
pursuant to ongoing project for the period. Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xx)( b) of the
order is not applicable for the period.

xxi.  The Company does not have investment in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and therefore,
company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements. Accordingly reporting under
clause 3(xxi) of the order is not applicable.

For G A CS & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 005193N

\ JI\W __ / v

( CA. SHASHI GUPTA )
PARTNER

M. No. : 084110
UDIN

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 10, 2024

Sty 184D Pl GNOY GoS|
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Annexure B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited for the period ended 31°* March, 2024

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IRCON DAVANAGERE
HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31st 2024 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on, “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI)”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan

, and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial

' controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

== --Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

——\\'\\

& A c?;mipanys internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
2} "-_‘reasbnable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2024, “based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India”.

For GACS & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 00%193N

LAIL b
( CA. SHASHIGUPTA )

PARTNER

M. No. : 084110
UDIN

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 10, 2024

Ahoguhg BEGH OV S

42

13



B

IRCON PAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017GO1317401

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2024

All amounts in Lakh unless otherwise stated

Pariiculars Note No. As at 31st March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
I. ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
(a) Property. Plant and equipment 3 103.23 115.98
(b) Financial Assets
Other financial assets 4 41,351.539 41,805.33
Total 41,454.82 41,921.31
2 Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets 5
(i) Trade Receivables 5.1 2,234.41 3,737.02
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalent 52 4.181.60 1.433.87
(iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 5.3 5,376.00 6,224.00
(iii) Loans 5.4 1.63 -
(iv) Other financial assets 5.5 5,239.00 4,811.72
(b) Current Tax Asset (Net) 14 22472 -
(c) Other Current Assets G 2.414.39 3,669.56
Total 19,671.75 19,876.17
Grand Total 61,126.57 61,797.48
AL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
)
1 Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital T 17,300.00 17,300.00
(b) Other Equity 8 7,417.10 5,029.27
Total 24,717.10 22,329.27
2 Liabilities
(i) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities 9
{1) Borrowings 9.1 32,217.45 34,729.61
(ii) Other financial liabilities 9.2 32.06 30.68
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 10 2.37 1.75
Total 32,251.88 34,762.04
(ii) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities 11
(1) Borrowings 11.1 2,512.00 2,512.00
(ii) Trade payables 11.2
- Total Outstanding Due of Micro and Small Enterprises and 20.51 46.36
- Tatal Fll]lsta.nding dues nf'c'redtmrs other than micro 863.59 9.04
) enterprises and small enterprises.
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 12 368.54 1,973.74
(b) Other Current Liabilities 13 392.95 20.74
(¢) Current Tax liability (Net) 14 - 144,29
Total 4,157.59 4,706.17
Grand Total 61,126.57 61,797.48
III. Summary of Material Accounting policics 2
IV. Noles forming part of financial statements 1-37

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited r

As per our Report of even date attached
G A CS & Associates

Charlered Accountants

ICAI Firm Reg. No. : 005193N

Ye i
CA Shashi Gupta Yogesh Kumar Misra
Partner Director Director

DIN-07654014

DL Ayl

Pradeep Baisoya Goutam Kumar Mishra .
Company Secretary  Chief Executive officer  CHiefFinancial Officer

[CAI Membership No, 084110 DIN-09008553

LA/ L

Place : New Delhi ~—
Date : 10,05.2024

43



IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017GOI317401
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

All amounts in Lakh unless otherwise stated

For the year ended

For the year ended

S.No. Particulars NoteNo. | 31t March 2024 31st March 2023
I. Revenue :
Revenue from operations 15 6,874.92 1.975.25
I1. Other income 16 6,222.48 5,683.19
II. Total Income (I + 11) 13,197.40 7,658.44
IV. |Expenses:
Project Expenses 17 6,731.38 1,192.13
Employee benefits expenses 18 84.13 76.79
Finance costs 19 3,109.81 2,887.88
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 20 15.91 12.40
Other Expenses 17 43.50 18.06
Total Expenses (IV). 9,984.73 4,187.26
V. Profit/(Loss) Before exceptional items and Tax (111 -1V) 3.212.67 3471.18
VI.  |Exceptional items 3 =
VIL. | Profit/(Loss) before tax (V + VI) 3,212.67 3471.18
VI | Tax expenses: 10
(1) Current tax
- For the Period 821.40 832.28
- For earlier years (net) 2.83 0.11
(2) Deferred tax (net) 0.62 1.75
Total Tax Expense 824.85 834.14
IX Profit/(Loss) for the period from continuing operation (VIL - VILI) 2,387.82 2,637.04
X Other Comprehensive Income
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss s o
(ii) Income Tax relating to Items that will not be reclassified to protit or loss =
B. (i) [tems that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(ii) Income Tax relating to ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss ) )
X1 Total Comprehensive Income for I:h‘i: pl-:riod (IX +X) (Comprising 2.387.82 2.637.04
profit/(Loss) and other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax)
XII  |Earnings Per Equity Share: (For Continuing Operation) 21
(1) Basic (In Rs) 1.38 152
(2) Diluted (In Rs) 1.38 1.52
Face Value Per Equity Share (In Rs) 10.00 10.00
XIII' |Summary of Material Accounting policies 2
XIV  |Notes forming part of tinancial statements 1-37

As per our Report of even date attached
G A CS & Associates

Chartered

Accountants

ICAI Firm Reg. No. : 005193N

CA Shashi,

Partner
ICAI Me

Jall

Place : New DthE//
Date :10.05.2024

7/& /L_/
Yogesh K;i)mar Misra

Director
DIN-07654014

bership No. 084110

Pradeep Baisoya
Company Secretary
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Masood Ahmad

DIN-09D08553

fizba

Goutam Kumar Mishra
Chief Executive officer

al\adeb Mandal
Chief Financial Officer




IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017GOI1317401

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ending 31st March 2024
All amounts in Lakh unless otherwise stated

Particulars

As at 3lst
March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before taxation 3,212.67 3471.18
Adjustnient for :
Interest Income (6,319.79) (5,664.83)
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 1591 12.40
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment's (2.56) B
Interest Expenses and Other Finance Cost 3,109.81 2.887.87
Operating Profit before Current /Non-Current Assets and Liabilitics (1) 16.04 706.62
Adjustment for :
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade Receivahles 1,502.60 (290.13)
Decrease / (Increase) in Non Current Financial Assets 433.73 4,191.20
Decrease / (Increase) in Loans & Other Current Financial Assets (566.02) (632.69)
Decrease / (Increase) in Loans & Other Current Assets 1.255.19 1,293.95
(Decrease) / Increase in Trade Payables 828.70 (1,702.00)
(Decrease) / Increase in Other Current Financial Liabilities (1,605.20) 14.88
‘_l.(Decrease',l / Increase in Other Non Current Financial Liabilities .38 18.49
(Decrease) / Increase in Other Current Liabilities 372.20 (206.98)
Total of Working Capital Changes (2) 2,242.58 2,686.72
Cash generated from operation (1+2) 2,258.62 3,393.34
Income Tax Paid(net of refund) (1,193.24) (488.92)
NET CASIH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 1,065.38 2,904.42
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment including CWIP (9.10) (128.01)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment's 850 -
Interest Received 6.456.91 5,660.49
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 848.00 (3,578.00)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) 7,304.31 1,954.48
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan From IRCON (Unsecured) - 837.00
Repayment of Loan to PNB (2,512.16) (1,884.03)
Interest Expenses and Other Finance Cost (3,109 .80) (2,887.87)
“NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) (5,621.96) (3,934.90)
Effect of Exchange differences on translation of Foreign Currency )
Cash & Cash Equivalents
NET INCREASE/ DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT (A+B+C+D) 2,747.73 924.00
Components of Cash Flow
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (OPENING) (E) 1,433.87 509.87
Balance with Banks
— On current accounts 18.87 509.87
— Bank Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 1.415.00 =
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (CLOSING)* () 4,181.60 1,433.87
Cash Balances
Balance with Banks
— On current accounts 14.60 18.87
— Bank Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 4,167.00 1,415.00
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH (F - E) — 92400

EQUIVALENT

* Earmarked [Fund

& W
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017GOI1317401

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ending 31st March 2024
All amounts in Lakh unless otherwise stated

Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from financing activities - Principal

Closing Balance

As at 31st March 2024 As at st March 2023
Particulars Loan From Holding | Loan From Loan From Loan From Baak
Co. Bank Holding Co. ‘ i
Opening Balance 471309 3252861 %,876.00 34.412.64
Movement during the year
Repayment of Borrowings - (2,512.16) - (1,884.03)
Borrowing taken During the year - - 8£37.00
Closing Balance 4,713.00 30,016.45 4,713.00 32,528.61
Reconciliation of Liabilitics arising from financing activities - Interest
As al 31st March 2024 As al Jst March 2023
Parfieiars T — Interest In‘terest on l:nan o .
. from Loan | From Holding .
Holding Co. h : From Bank
From Bank Co.
Opening Balance 4 - E %
Movement during the year
Interest Accrued during the year 41549 2.660.86 3167.76 251117
Interest Paid during the year (415.49) (2.660.86) (367.76) (2.511.17)

1. The above Cash flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 7 on Statement

of Cash Flows.

2. Figures for the previous year/ period have been re-grouped / re-classified / re-casted to conform to the classification of the current year.

3. Figures in bracket () represents outflow of cash.

As per our Report of even date attached
G A C S & #ssociales i
Chartered Accountants

ICAIL Firm Reg. No. : 005193N

CA Shashi
Partner
ICAI Membership No. 084110
Place : New Delhi

Date : 10.05.2024

-

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited

ey ™

Yogesh'#lmar Misra
Directo

DIN-07654014

Pradeep Baisoya
Company Secretary
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Directgr
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017GOI317401

Statement Of Change In Equity As At 315t March 2024
All amounts in Lakh unless otherwise stated

A. Equity share capital

I]:llm?ce _ﬂt e Chi i L Restated Balanee at the Balance at the eud of
PParticulars 1’»‘3'“"'“3‘ l.ulgt'.!i ue to Frior beginning of the Changes in equity share[  Reporting Period
of the Reporting Period Errors i
. Reporting Period
Period"
Balance as at March 31, 2023 17,300.00 17,300,00 - 17,300.00
Balance as at March 31, 2024 17,300.00 17,300.00 - 17.300.00
B. Other Equity
Reserve & Surplus Total
Particulars
Retained Earnings Quasi Equity

dalance as at April 1, 2022 1,006.23] 1,386.00] 2,392.23]
Changes 1n accounting policy or prior period errors - - -
Restated balance at the 1st April 2022 1,006.23) 1,386.00] 2,392.23)

Profit for the vear 2.637.04 = 263704

Other Comprehensive Income - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 3,643.27 1,386.00] 5,029.27
Balance as at 31st March 2023 3,643.27 1,386.00] 5,029.27
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors 2z
Restated balance at the st April 2023 3,643.27 1,386.00 5,029.27

Profit for the year 2,387.82 - 2.387.82

Other Comprehensive Income - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 2,187.82 - 2,387.82
Balance as at 31st March 2024 6,031.09 1,386.00 7,417.09|

As per our R¢port of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors

G A C S & Apsaciates Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Chartered Ageountants
}IM Firm Rgg. No. - 005193N

Yogesh Kumar Misra

Director
DIN-07654014

Ll -

CA Shashi Gupta -~

Partner j@

ICAT Membership No. 084110

Place : New Delhi Prideep Baisoya Goutam Kumar Mishr.

Company Secrelary Chiel Executive officer

Date : 10052024

a7

DIN-09008553

Chief Financial Officer
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ii.

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Corporate Information

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IDHHL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International
Limited domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of companies Act 2013 applicable in
India. The company came into existence when, Ircon International Limited has been awarded the work of Six-
Laning of Davanagere — Haveri from km 260+000 to km 338+923 of NH-48 (Old NH-4) in the state of
Karnataka to be executed as Hybrid Annuity Project on DBOT Annuity Pattern under NHDP Phase — V in
accordance with the terms and conditions in the agreement with National Highway Authority of India (NHAI)
dated 19-06-2017. In pursuant to the provisions of ‘Request for Proposal’, the selected bidder ‘Ircon
International Limited’ has formed a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) named Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway
Limited (IDHHL) as wholly owned subsidiary and incorporated under Companies Act, 2013 on 11th May 2017.
Accordingly, SPV has signed the Concession Agreement with NHAI on 19th June 2017. In terms of the said
agreement, IDHHL has an obligation to complete construction of the project of Six laning of Davanagere
Haveri section and to keep the project assets in proper working condition including all projects assets whose
lives have expired. Total Project cost is Rs 1177 crore (i.e. Bid Project cost). 40% of the Bid Project cost, adjusted
for Price Index Multiple, shall and due and payable to the Concessionaire (IDHHL) in 5 equal instalments of
8% each during the construction period. The remaining Bid Project cost, adjusted for Price Index Multiple,
shall be due and payable in 30 biannual instalments commencing from the 18oth day of COD in accordance
with the Provisions of clause 23.6 of the agreement which is Annuity payments during Operation Period. The
Project is under Annuity pattern and will be under operation with the IDHHL for 15 years from the
Commercial Operational Date (COD). The payments of the same, under Annuity model will be payable at the
achievement of specific milestone as per the agreement.

NHAI vide its letter dated 19-07-2021 has de-scoped the work on main carriageway of 6.880 Kms, service road
for a length of 49.848 Kms and project facilities (14 Nos. of Bus bays and Bus Shelters,2 Nos. of Truck Lay
Byes and 1 Rest Area) . Accordingly, company has received Provisional Completion certificate with effect from
May 28, 2021.However, NHAI vide its letter dated 16.11.2022 has Re-scoped the balance work which was De-
scoped earlier. The registered office of the company located at C-4, District Centre, Saket, and New Delhi -
110017.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of Directors in their meeting held on
10.05.2024.

Material accounting policies
Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

Statement of compliance

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared on going concern basis following
accrual system of accounting and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from
time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule ITI to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind
AS compliant Schedule I11I), as applicable to the standalone financial statements.

Basis of measurement

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

e (Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value.
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Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Functional a:d Presentation Currency

These Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest Lakhs up to two decimals except for per
share data, unless otherwise stated.

Summary of material accounting policies

A summary of the material accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as
given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the
financial statements.

Current and non-current classification

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents, the Company has determined twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of
classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current in the balance sheet.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at their cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment includes:

(a)its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates;

(b) Cost directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset which incurred in bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if the cost of part is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of that part is different from the useful life
of remaining asset.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets as specified under part C of schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013 and disclosed in the
notes to accounts. The residual values is not more than 5% of the original cost of assets.

Property plant and equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to 5000/~ are fully
depreciated, by keeping Re. 1 as token value for identification. However, Mobile phones provided to
employees are charged to statement of profit and loss irrespective of its value.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are

\
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Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

included in profit or loss within other gains/(losses).

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from the Service Concession Arrangement comprising the
construction and operation & maintenance services pertaining to an infrastructure (Road) on Hybrid
Annuity Mode.

Revenue from Service Concession Arrangement

The Company's contracts with the Customers for the construction and operation & maintenance services
under the Service Concession Arrangement (SCA) are accounted for as a single performance obligation as
contract is negotiated as a package with a single commercial objective and involves complex integration
of construction and maintenance services.

Revenue is recognized over the time using input method (i.e., percentage-of-completion method) which is
consistent with the transfer of control to the customer because there is a direct relationship between the
Company's effort (i.e., cost incurred) and the transfer of service to the customer. Under input method,
conlract revenue is recognized as revenue by reference to the stage of completion as at the reporting date.
The stage of completion is measured in terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total
estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation. However, where the Company is not be able to
reasonably measure the outcome of a performance obligation, but the Company expects to recover the
costs incurred in satisfying the performance obligation, the Company recognizes revenue only to the extent
of the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the performance
obligation. A cumulative catch-up adjustment would be recognized in the period in which the entity is able
to reasonably measure its progress. Changes to total estimated contract costs, if any, are recognized in the
period in which they are determined as assessed at the contract level.

Any expected losses on contracts in progress are charged to statement to profit & Loss, in total, in the
period the losses are identified.

Revenue is measured at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation and is
adjusted for variable considerations. Variability in the transaction price arises primarily due to liquidated
damages, price variation clauses, incentives, change in law ete. The Company recognizes revenue for
variable consideration when it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount cumulative revenue
recognized will not oceur. The company estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable
consideration using most likely amount method. Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied
performance obligation are recognized as revenue, or as a reduction of revenue, in the period in which the
transaction price changes. ¢
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Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Contract modifications are accounted for when additioni-, deletions or changes are approved either to the
contract scope or contract price. The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether
the services added to the existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling
price. Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch-up basis, while those
that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if additional services are
priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of existing contract and creation of a new
contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

Contract balances

Contract assets

If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is
conditional. The portion of the payments retained by the customer until final contract settlement is not
considered a significant financing component since it is usually intended to provide customer with a form
of security for Company’s remaining performance as specified under the contract, which is consistent with
the industry practice.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only
the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Trade receivable are
recognized initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The
Company hold the trade receivable with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore
measure them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less loss allowance.

Contract liabilities

If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a
contract liability is recognized when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Financial Assets [Inder Service Concession Arrangements (Appendix C to Ind AS 115 —
Revenue from Contracts with Customers)

The Company recognize a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor (“NHAI”) for the construction
services and Operation & Maintenance services.

~Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value and subsequently at amortized cost using the

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Under this method, financial asset will be increased for the financing
element and reduced as and when money is received from grantor.

Other income

Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate method.

All other income is accounted on accrual basis when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount
that will be received.

51



5

ii.

ii.

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds and are charged to statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred
except when it meets the criteria for capitalization as part of qualifying assets as per Ind AS 23.

Taxes
Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred income tax.
Current income Tax

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period and is computed
in accordance with relevant tax regulations.

Current income tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits

Employee benefits such as salaries and wages, short term compensated absences, and Performance
Related Pay (PRP) falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the statement of profit

and loss in in the period in which the employee renders the related services.

Post-employment benefits & other Long Term Employee Benefits

A,_
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Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

The employees of the Company are ¢n deputation from Ircon International Limited, Holding Company.
The post employee benefits & other I0:1g term employee benefits includes ¢ratuity, provident fi:nd, post-
retirement medical facility, pension, leave encashment and leave travel concession.

As per arrangement with the Ircon International Limited, Holding Company, the cost in relation to post
employee & other long term Employee Benefits will be reimbursed to the holding Company on the basis
of fixed contribution based on basic pay and dearness allowance for the period of services rendered in the
Company.

The companies liability with respect to the long term employee benefit is limited to the extent of fixed
contribution to be paid to the holding company. Actual settlement of the long term employee liability will
be the responsibility of holding company.

The Contractual employees of the Company are not eligible for post employee benefits & other long term
employee benefits.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
unrestricted cash and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months and less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Contingent liabilities & contingent assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Provisions recognized by the Company include provisions for Maintenance, Demobilization,
Legal Cases, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), Onerous Contracts and others.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

These provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.
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Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Onerous contracts

If the Company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is
recognized and measured as a provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous
contract is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets
dedicated to that contract.

These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present obligations that may but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of such
obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect
of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for
consideration.

Company as a lessee

Short Term leases

The company has elected not to recognise ROU and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease

term of twelve months or less. The company recognises lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial instruments

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets

a) Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets (excluding trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component,
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Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

being measured at transaction price) are recognized initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial 2sset. Transaction «osts directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in statement of profit
and loss.

b) Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement of financial asset depends on the Company business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its financial asset as:

Financial assets at amortized cost

After initial measurement, the financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flow represent solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income,

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for recognizing impairment loss on financial
assets measured at amortised cost, trade receivables, and other contractual rights to receive cash or other
financial asset.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company follows 'simplified approach' and measures the
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.

¢) Derccognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset, and the transfer qualifies for recognition under Ind
AS 1009.

The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received / receivable is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities
a) Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings, net of directly

attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables and other financial
liabilities.

b) Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

55




2.2.12.

2.2.13.

2 )14.

2,215,

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

After initial recognition, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the EIR (Effective Interest Rate) method. Amortized cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

¢) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Fair value measurement

The company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured, are disclosed in the financial statements. Such
assets and liabilities are categorised within the level 3 (Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable) of fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

Earnings Per Share

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity
shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the w01ghted average
number of shares outstanding during the period.

In determining diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

Prior Period Adjustment

Errors/omissions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial and
adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does not exceed 0.50% of
total operating revenue as per last audited financial statement of the Company.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of Standalone Financial Statements requires the management to make judgements,
accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected
in future periods.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and
of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to
be different than those originally assessed.

i
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Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Significant areas of estimatian and judgements s stated in the respective accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the financial statements are as follows:

Allowances for uncollected trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the receivable’s balances and
historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems not be
collectible.

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against
the company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based on all available
facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify reliably and such obligations
are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although there can be no assurance of the final
outcome of legal proceedings in which the company is involved. it is not expected that such contingencies
will have material effect on its financial position of probability.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the company’s past history, credit risk, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and
the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business differences arising between
the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate
future adjustments that will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period
in which such determination is made. The company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and
the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
Determining the recoverable amount of the assets is judgmental and involves the use of significant
estimates and assumptions. The estimates are based upon assumptions believed to be reasonable, but
which are inherently uncertain and unpredictable and do not reflect unanticipated events and
circumstances that may occur. f&/
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Revenue recognition

The company’s revenue recognition policy, which is set out in Note 2.2.4, is central to how the company
values the work it has carried out in each financial year.

These policies require forecasts to be made of the outcomes of Contracts, which require, assessments and
judgements to be made on changes in scope of work and claims and variations.

The Company has incorporated significant judgements over contractual entitlements for long term
project. The range of potential outcomes could result in a materially positive or negative change to
underlying profitability and cash flow.

Estimates are also required with respect to the below mentioned aspects of the contract:

» Determination of stage of completion

« Estimation of project completion date

+  Provisions for foreseeable loses

« Estimated total revenues and estimated total costs to completion, including claims and variations.

These are reviewed at each reporting date and adjust to reflect the current best estimates.
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3 Property, Plant and Equipment

Particulars Computers Pla.u: aml‘ Vehicles Total
Equipment's

Gross Carrying Amount (At Cost)
At 1st April 2022 0.87 - - 0.87
Additions - 82.36 45.64 128.00
Disposals/Adjustments - - : -
At 31st March 2023 0.87 82.36 45.64 128.87
Additions - - 9.10 9.10
Disposals/Adjustments _ - - -6.52 -6.52
At 31st March 2024 0.87 82.36 48.22 131.45

' Depreciation and impairment

JAt 1st April 2022 0.49 - - 0.49
Depreciation charge for the year s BlS 8.17 4.08 12.40
Impairment - - - -
Disposals/Adjustments - - - -
At 31st March 2023 0.64 8.17 4.08 12.89
Depreciation charge for the year 0.14 10.84 4.93 15.91
Impairment - - - -
Disposals/Adjustments - - -0.59 -0.59
At 31st March 2024 0.79 19.01 8.42 28.22
Net book value
At 31st March 2024 0.08 63.35 39.80 103.23
At 31st March 2023 0.23 74.19 41.56 115.98

(i) Depreciation is provided based on useful life supported by the technical evaluation considering business
) specific usage, the consumption pattern of the assets and the past performance of similar assets.

Estimated useful life of assets are as follows:

B Useful life adopted based on
: Useful lives as per Schedule ; Sl
Class of Assets v 2 technical evaluation (in years)
' IT (Years) e
Plant and Machinery - 8-15 1-15
Computers LR ' 3-6 3-6
Vehicles a=16) . 8-10 8-10

* Each significant component of the asset has been considered for determination of useful life of the asséts.
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4 Other Financial Assets (Non Current)

: As at 31st As at Jst
Particulars :
? March 2024 | March 2023
Unsecured and Cansidered Good
Seecurity Deposits 3477 377
Others
Contract Assels
-From Canstruction Contract 41,316.82 41.770.56
Total 41,351.59 41,805.33
Financial Assets - Construction contract is the Highway being made by IDHHL under Hybrid Annuity Model (HAM) (Refer Note 27)
5 Finauvial Assels
5.1 Trade Receivables
As at 31st Asat st

Particulars

March 2024

March 2023

Trade Receivables

Unsecured Considered good 2,234 41 3,737.02
Total 2,234.41 3,737.02
{Amount due from related party is Rs Nil (PY-Nil)
A) Trade Receivable Apeing Schedule (As on 31st March 2024)
Particulars Outstanding for the year ended as at 315t March, 2024 from the
due date of payment
Not Due | Unbilled Total
Less than 6|6 months - 1 . More than 3
1-2 years | 2-3 years
months year years
(1) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good*® - 42361 386.06 375.57 606.66 228.79 213.712 2,234.41
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase i credit risk - N . . . ; ) -
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - = - -
(i1i) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - - - - =
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant
increase in credit risk ) ) ) B ) ) ) .
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired ™ - % 5 . M - »
B) Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule (As on 31st March 2023)
Particulars Outstanding for the year ended as at J1st March, 2023 from the
d t t
Not Due | Unbilled ue date of paymen Total
less than 6 |6 months - 1 More than 3
i 1-2 years  2-3 years
Months year years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good* - Pt 73475 624 .55 22195 1,448.52 70725 3,737.02
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have - - * .
significant increase in credit risk ) = )
(i1i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired = - S - s s = =
J(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - - - - o - -
| (%) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant - -
increase in credit risk 2 . : 3 .
_|(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credil impaired - - - - n . = =
* Trade receivable pertains to NHAI .
5.2 Cash and Cash Equivalent s . :
_ f3 IR Asat3lst | Asat3lst
Particul % ;
rticulars o3 ' March 2024 | March 2023
Balance With Banks :
Earmarked Funds*
— On current accounts 14.60 18.87
Other Balances: ;
— Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months I 4,167 00 141500
SN 4,181.60] 1,433.87
A

'.
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5.3 Bank Balances otk:or than Cash and Cash Equivalent

. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars March 2024 March 2023
Other Bank Balances
— Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12
o 5,376.00 6,224.00

Total 5,376.00 6,224.00

*Includes deposit of Rs 2646 lacs (As at 31st March 2023:Rs 2646 lacs) is under lien with Punjab National
Bank and Rs 2730 lacs (As at 31st March 2023: Rs 3578 lacs) are earmarked fund as per concession agreement

entered with NHAI

5.4 Loans
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2024 March 2023
Considered Good:Secured
Staff Loan and Advance 1.63 -
Total 1.63 -
5.5 Other Financial Assets (Current)
Pastlciliis As at 31st As at 31st
March 2024 March 2023
Unsecured and Considered Good
From Related Parties -
From Others
Interest Accrued but Not Due 68.01 4.33
Contract Assets:
-From Construction Contract 2,829.58 2,670.17
-Money Withheld by Client 404.97 -
-Interest Recoverable on Financial Assets 1,936.06 2,136.84
Other Recoverable 0.38 0.38
Total 5,239.00 4,811.72]

ot Financial Asstes-Contruction contract is the highway being made by company under hybrid annuity model

(HAM). Refer Note 27

6 Other Current Assets

As at 31st

Particulars . axmpSte
[ eyl | . March 2024 March 2023
Unsecured and Considered Good ’
Advsnf;ces other than capital advances
Adva:nces Recoverable Erom:
- Gdods & Setvioés Tax 3 - 2,368.68 3,581.60
- Bulilding cess Receivéiblc : 48.28
Other Advances 0.59 0.30
Others
Prepaid Expenses. ° 45.12 39.38
Total 2,414.39 3,669.56
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7 Equity Share capital

Particulars

As at 31st
March 2024

As at 31st
March 2023

Authorised share capital

21,70.50.000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each 21,705.00 21,705.00
21,705.00 21,705.00

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up Capital

17,30,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10 each-fully paid 17,300.00 17,300.00

Total 17,300.00 17,300.00

A) Promoter’s shareholding

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Shares held by Promoter at the end of the period / year % change

S.No Promoter Name*

No. of shares

% of total
shares

during the
period / year

(IRCON)

Ircon International Limited- Holding Company

17.30,00.000

100.00%

0.00%

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars

Shares held by Promoter at the end of the period / year

S.No Promoter Name*

No. of shares

% of total
shares

% change
during the
period / year

(IRCON)

Ircon International Limited- Holding Company

17.30,00,000

100.00%

0.00%

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

Name oi' the shareholder

No. of Share

% holding in

No. of Share

% holding in

the class| the class
. |Ircon International Limited- Holding Company 17,30,00,000 100 17.30,00,000 100
Total 17,30,00,000 100 17,30,00,000 100

" *Including 800 Shares hold by nominees

C) Aggregate no. of equity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the

period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date

As at 3st
March 2024

As at J1st

Panim]jrg: March 2023

'_As at 31st
‘March 2022

‘As at 31st
March 2021

As at 3]st
March 2020

No. of Share No. of Share

~ No. of Share

No. of Share|

No. of Share| -

Equity shares allotted other than cash | - -
Equity shares issued as bonus shares B -

Equity shares Buy Back

Total
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D) Terms / Rights attacked to Equity Shares :
(2) Voting :

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per

share.

(b) Liguidation :

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c¢) Dividend :

The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting

E) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and share capital outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

Particulars
No of shares Rsin Lacs|] Noofshares| Rsin Lacs|
M[1ssued/Subscribed and Paid ity Capital outstanding at the beginning

qf.ue ubseribed and Paid up equity Capital outstanding at the beginning 17.30,00,000 1730000 | 17.30,00,000 17.300.00
of'the year

Add: Shares Issued during the year - - - -
Less: Shares Buy Back during the year = & . -
Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equity Capital outstanding at the end of they]  17,30,00,000 17,300.00 | 17,30,00,000 17,300.00
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8  Other Equity

Partic:.\: As at 31st March As at 31st March
artic:-lars 2024 2023
(a) Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 3,643.28 1,006.23
Add: Transfer from surplus in statement of profit and loss 2,387.82 2,637.04
Closing Balance 6,031.10 3,643.27
(b) Quasi Equity Instrument (Loan From Holding Company)
Opening Balance 1,386.00 1,386.00
Received During the vear - -
Closing Balance 1,386.00 1,386.00
[Grand Total | 7,417.10 | 5,029.27 |

Nature and Purpose of Other Reserves:

(a) Retained Earnings:-Retained Earnings represents the undistributed profits of the Company.
(b) Quasi Equity Instrument:-Interest free loan /quasi equity received from holding company.

9  Financial Liabilities (Non Current)

9.1 Borrowings

Particul As at 31st March As at 31st March
articuiars 2024 2023

Secured:
Term Loan from Bank i
#l.oan from Punjab National Bank** - 27,504.45 30,016.61
Un-Secured:
Loan from Holding Company* 4,713.00 4,713.00
Total 32,217.45 34,729.61

#The Company has applied term loan for the purpose for which loans were obtained

Notes :
Un-Secured Loans

* Terms & Conditions of Loan from Holding Company(Ircon International Limited)

1. Sanction :- 26.46 Crores

(i) Interest rate to be charged on'loan shall be at SBI one year MCLR rate prevailing from time to time plus

0.50%

(ii) Duration of the Loan Disbursement would be a period of 6 month from the date of signing this

agreement.

(iii) Unsecured loan shall be repaid in 2.5 years starting after 12 years from COD in structured half yearly

_——__ instalments.

—

78 MSS,

¥ ] \\"I'\
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2. Sanction :- 25.00 Crores

(i) Interest rate to be charged on the loan shall be at PNB [-month MCLR + 0.25% (as applicable from time
to time).

(ii) Duration of Loan Disbursement would be a period of | year from the date of signing of agreement.

(iii) Unsecured Loan shall be repaid in 2.5 years starting after 12 years from COD or repayment of full term
loan of senior lender, whichever is earlier in structured half-yearly instalments.

(iv) Interest to be calculated on monthly rest basis.

** Terms & Conditions of Loan from Punjab National Bank
Sanction :- 502.76 Crores

(i) Interest rate to be charged on loan shall be at | Month MCLR +0.30%. As applicable from time to time.

(ii) Repayment period will be 10 years and 6 months (Starting w.e.l 24.04.2021 and last instalment on
-, 24.07.2031)

(iii) Term loan shall be repaid in 42 Quarterly instalments starting from 24th April 2021.

(iv) Interest shall be paid as and when due.

(v) Term Loan to be backed by unconditional & irrevocable corporate guarantee of M/s Ircon International
Limited (rated CARE AAA) up to receipt of Ist annuity from NHAI or COD plus 180 days whichever is

later

(vi) The loan shall be secured by-

(a) First charge by way of hypothecation of all fixed asset/ movable assets of the company(Other than project
assets; Except those acquired out of the free flow of the company in operation phase) and being informed

from time to time to lender.

(b) First charge on the project's book debts , Operating cash flow, Receivables, Commission, Revenues of

whatsoever nature and wherever arising, Present and future intangibles, goodwill and uncalled

capital(Present and future).

(c.) A first charge on project's bank accounts, including but not limited to the escrow account opened in

designated bank, where all cash inflow from the project shall be deposited and proceeds shall be utilised in a
) manner and priority to be decided by lender/ investors.

(d) Assignment of all company's rights and interest under all the agreement related to project, letter of

credit(if any), and guarantee and performance bond provided by any party for any contract related to the

project in Favor of borrower,

(e) Substitution agreement executed by authority on behalf of lender for the facility.

(f) Assignment of all applicable insurance policies.

9.2 Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars As at 31st March . | As at 31st March
S 2024 2023
Deposits, Retention money and Money Withheld 32.06 30.68
32.06 30.68

4
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10 Deferred Tax Assets and Income Tax
Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes”
{a) The Major Components of Income Tax Expenses for the vear ended 31 march 2024 and 31 March 2023

For the Year ended

S.No. Particulars -
As at 31st March As at 31st March

2024 2023
1 Profit and Loss Section

Current income tax :

Current income tax charge 821.40 83228
Adjustment in respect of current tax of previous vear 2.83 0.1
Deferred tax :

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 0.62 1.75
Income tax expense reported in the Profit and Loss section 824.85 834.14

2 Other Comprehensive Tneome (OCT) Seetion
Income tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:
Met loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans " -
Net loss/(gain) on foreign operation translation
Income tax expense reported in the OCI section

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax vate for 3ist March 2024 and 31 March 2023:

5.No.| Particulars For the Year ended
) As at 31st March As at 31st March
2024 2023
1 JAccounting profit before income lax 3212.67 3471.18
2 |Corporate tax ratc as per [ncome tax Act, 1961 25.168% 25.168%
3 |Tax on Accounting profit (3)=(1)* (2) 808.56) 873.63
4 |Effect of Tax Adjustments:
(1) JAdjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years 2,83 0.11
(i) |Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses - -
(1) {Impact of Rate Difference = -
(iv) |Tax on Income exempt from tax - -
(v) |Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes: 2 =
-Other country additional tax = -
-Other non-deductible expenses 12 81 -
(vi) | Tax effect of various other items 0.65 -39.60
3 -
Income tax expense reported n the Statement of Profit and Loss 824.85 B34.14
6 |Eftective Tax Rate 25.67% 24.03%|
(e) Components of deferred tax (assets) and liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit or Loss -
S.No.|Particulars Balance sheet Statement of Profit or Loss
As at 31st March As at st March| As at 31st March
2024 2023l 2024 31st March 2023
2 o 3 -y H 1 H " - ¥ o
1 i‘rupl.rty, [ Iz!nt‘& I'.qul;l)mcnl (including :_nl:Englbie). Dilterence in 537 . 175 062 175
book depreciation and income tax depreciation
) Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 237 1.75 0.62 1.75
(d) Reflected in the balance sheet as [ollows:
S.No. Particulars 1 . As at 31st March As at 31st March
: 2024 2023
1 Deferred tax assets "
2 Deferred tax hability : 2.37 1.75
Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) (Net) . 2.37 1.75

Note: Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset as they relate to the same governing laws 2

(e) Reconciliation of deferred tax (liabilities)/assets: : 5 . sy - .

As at 31 March 2024 ] 3 . : : = e

. S.No.|Particulars  ~ ] 1 : . .~ Balance Recogniséd in Recognised in OCI | Balance As at 31st
il 2 i Brah po T As at Ist April 2023 “statement of profit ) % ~ March 2024
s e ] (Net) g and loss
i I |Property, P!f{nl‘& I::qm?ment (including lptalnglblul: lefercncc.ln o (1.75) (U.ﬁz.) i 237
hook depreciation and income tax depreciation
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) ] R (1.75) (0.62) - (2.37)
As at 31 March 2023
e S.No.|Particulars . L Balance Recognised in Recognised in OCI Balance
v e > Asat Ist April 2022] statement of profit As at 31st March,
< ! ! i (Net) and loss 2023 (Net)
1 \[Property, Plant & Equipment (including intangible) Difference in | * = (1.75) i (1.75)
; ﬁopk depreciation and income tax depreciation s i
CINet deferred tax assets/(liabilities) d 66 - (1.75) - (1.75)
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11 Financial Liabilities (Cnrrent)

1.1 Borrowings
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2024 | March 2023
Secured
Term Loan from Bank
#Current maturities of long- term debt 2,512.00 2.512.00
Total 2,512.00 2,512.00
#The Company has applicd term loan for the purposc for which loans were obtained
*For detailed terms & condition refer note no 9.1
1.2 Trade Payables
aiisciis As at 31st As at 3lst
) March 2024 | March 2023
- Total Outstanding Due of Micro and Small Enterprises and 20.51 46 36
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than miero enterprises and small enterprises.
) -Payable to Holding Company. 863.36 9.04
| -Payable to Others 0.23 3
Total 884.10] 55,40]
A) Information in respect of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as required by Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
1) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year:
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises . +
Interest due on above . -
2) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment - -
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
3) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed - -
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006
4) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - -
5) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as - -
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the
MSMED Act 2006 '
B) Trade payables Ageing Schedule
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2024 from the due Total
) Less than 1 1-2 year 2-3 years More than 3
43 YEAL YEArs
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises ) 19.98 - 0.53 - - - 20.51
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro - | '
enterprises and small enterprises 44.73 - 818.86 0.00 0.00 863.59
Disputed dues of inicro enterprises and small enlerpfiscs + = ~ = = = H
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
s small enterprises ' i - L - - - - .
Particulars . lfn'hiiled . Not Due Outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2023 from the due Total
N 3 RS = __date of payment & .
| y “HapEtn ¥y Less than 1 - s S ek - | More than 3 :
1 | ! vear 3 years
Tlulai outstanding dues of micro emlbrpnscs and ama!l |
Jenterprises | 46,26 0.10°). . 46.36
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro | f ¢
enterprises and small enterprises | - i 8.65 0.39 - - 9.04
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - ) = = - = =
Disputed dues of ereditors other than micto enterprises and
. |small enterprises B oo 0t = : = 2 =
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12 Other Financial Liabilitics

. rteulars As at 3ist Asat31st |
March 2024 March 2023

Others
Other Payables (including Staff Payable) 27.62 19.82
Money Withheld with Contractor -

-With Holding Co. 337.87 1,953.92

-With Others 3.05 -
Total 368.54 1,973.74

13 Other Current Liabilities
As at 3lst Asat st

Particulars

March 2024

March 2023

Contract Liability

Advance from Clients 327.54 -
Others
Statutory dues 65.41 20.74
Total 392.95 20.74
14 Current Tax Assets / (Liabilities) (Net)
Particul As at 3lst As at 31st
BOSRIAS March 2024 | March 2023
Provision for Income Tax (Net of Advance tax and TDS) 224.72 (144.29)
Total 224.72 (144.29)
15 Revenue from operations
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
i March 2024 | March 2023
Revenue From Contract with costumers:
Contract revenue under service concession arrangements 6,874.92 1,975.25
Total 6,874.92 1,975.25
For other relevant disclosure Refer Note 26 & 27
16 Other Income
Particulars As at 31st As at Jst
R R T March 2024 March 2023
Interest Income '
Interest on Term Deposit 575.29 294.67
Intt:rclsl on Income Tax Refund -1 17.71
JInterest Income on Financial Assets 574450 |- 5370.15
Interest Income on Staff Loan 0.13 -
Others Non Operating Income
Profii on sale of assets 2.56 : -
Other Miscellancous Incomie - 0,00 0.66
Tatal - - 6,322.48 5,683.19
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17 Project and Other Expenses

Particulars

Project Expenscs

Other Expenses

Fool Note

For the year
ended
J1st March 2024

For the year
ended
Jisi Hiarch 2023

For the year
ended
31st March 2024

For the year
ended
Jlst March 2023

Work Expenses 6.217.16 913.71 c -
Operation and Maintenance Expenditure 234.65 235.02 - -
[nspection, Geo Technical Investigation & Survey Exp. Eic. 77.26 59.50 - -
Repairs and Maintenance of Machinery 092 E = -
Bank Guarantee & Other Charges - - 1.34 -
Rent - - 131 3.01
Rates and taxes - - 0.00 -
Power, Electricity and Water charges L1310 5936 - Z
Insurance 88.29 78.32 - -
Travelling & convevance 2 0.23 0.25 0.15
Printing & stationery - 0.12 0.19
Legal & Professional charges - 0.40 5.86 5.59
Auditors remuneration (1) - - 1.77 .60
Advertisement & publicity - - 0.67 -
AICorporate social responsibility (Refer Note 30) - - 29.32 6.94
Miscellaneous expenses z 2.95 0.86 0.58
Provisions Utilised - -157.36 - -
Total 6,731.38 1,192.13 43.50 18.06
(i) Pavment to Statutory Auditors: -
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
J1st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
(a) Audit Fee - current year 0.96 0.88
(b) Limited Review Fees 0.53 0.45
(c) Tax Audit Fees - current year 0.28 0.27
(d) Certification Fees : =
Total  Frid L.60
18 Employee Remuneration and Benefits
Piiticalivs For the year ended For the year ended
: ) J1st March 2024 31st March 2023
. Other . Other
Operating Administrative Total e Administrative Tatal
Salaries, Wages & Bonus 6758 - 67.58 65.14 - 65.14
Contribution to provident and other funds 433 - 4.33 4,78 - 4.78
Retirement benefits - 12.22 - 12.22 6.87 : 6.87
Staff Welfare - 2 = - - -
- Total 84,13 - 84.13 76.79 - 76.79

19 Finance Cost

Particulars

For the year
ended
J1st March 2024

For the year
ended
J1st March 2023

Interest Expense

To Holding Company ! i 41549 367.76
To Banks i 2.660.86 2,511.17
To Statutory Interest i 24.13 &

Bank Guarantee & Other Charges { 933 895
Total 3,109.81 2,887.88
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20

21

22

a)
(i)

(ii)

Depreciation, amortization and impairment

For the year

For the year

Particuiars ended ended

31st March 2024 | 374t March 2023
Depreciation on Property Plant and Equipment 15.91 12.40
Total 1591 12.40

Earnings Per Share
Disclosure as per [Ind AS 33 “Earnings per share’

Basic CPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the vear attributable to equity holdets by the weighted average number of equity shares outstundiug during the

year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to the equity holders after considering the effect of dilution by weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive

poiential equity shares into equity shares.
(i) Basic and diluted enrniugs per share (in Rs.)

Particulars

For the year
ended

For the year
ended 31st March

Jist March 2024 2023
Profit attributable to Equity holders (Rs. in lacs) 2387 83 2637.04
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic and Diluted EPS (In Nos) 173000000 173000000
Earnings per share (Basic) 1.38 1.52
Earnings per share (Diluted) 1.38 1.52
10.00 10.00

Face value per share

(ii) Profit attributable to equity shareholders (used as numerator) (Rs. in lacs)

Particulars

For the year
ended

For the year
ended 31st March

31st March 2024 2023
Profit for the year as per Statement of Profit and Loss 2387.83 2637.04
2387.83 2637.04

P’rofit attributable to Equity holders of the company used for computing EPS:

(iii) Weighted average number of equity shares (used as denominator) (Nos.)

Particulars

FFor the year
ended

For the year
ended 31st March

Shri Yogesh Kumar Mishra (w.e £ 1st Febriary 2024)
Shn Mahadeb Mandal (w.e.l st July 2021)

Shri Goutam Kumar Mishra (w.e.f. 24th August 2022)
Shri Pradeep Kumar Baisoya (w.e £ 12th April 2022)

31st March 2024 2023
A Opening balance of issued equity shares 17,30,00,000 17,30,00,000
Equity shares issued during the year - -
. |Weighted average number of equity shares for computing Basic EPS 17,30,00,000 17,30,00,000
Dilution Effect:
|Add: Weighted average numbers of potential equity shares outstanding during the year = "
Weighted average number of equity shares for computing Diluted EPS 17,30,00,000 17,30,00,000
Related Party Disclosures
Disclosure as per Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” are as under:
List of Related Parties
Holding company
Ircon International Limited
Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Name Designation
Shri Masood Ahmed (w.e.f 2nd August 2021) Director
Shri Devendra Kumar Sharma (w.e.f. 2nd August 2021 to 31st Janoary 2024) Director
Ms. Ritu Arora (w.e £ | 3th May 2021 to 16th November 2023) i Director
Ms Aradhana Garg (w.e.f. 23rd January 2024) Director
Shr Rohit Parmar (w.e.f 15t June 2022 to 24th April 2024) Director
Director

Chiel Financial Officer
Chief Executive Officer
Company Secrelary
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b) Transactions with other related parties are as follows:

Nature of transaction

Name of related party

Nature of relationship

For the year
ended
Jist March 2024

For the year
ended
31st March 2023

1) Reimbursement expenses

2) Provision for O&M

3) Works Contract

4) Asset Acquired under works contract
3) Rent Expense (inclusive of GST)

6) Interest on Loan

7) Loans

Ircon International Limited

Holding Company

33.51
4541
6,217.16

29.62
913.71
128.01
301
367.76
837.00

¢) Outstanding balances with the related parties are as follows:

Nature of transaction

Name of related party

Nature of relationship

As at J1st March

Asat 31st March

2024 2023
Balance Payable as on reporting date Ircon International Limited Holding Company 1,201.24 1,962 .96
Unsecured Loan o/s Ircon International Limited Holding Company 4,713.00 4,713.00

) Remuneration to Key management personnel are as under:

Particulars

For the year
ended
31st March 2024

For the year
ended
J1st March 2023

Short term employee benefits 61.01 47.52
Post employment benefits 15.04 7.67
Sitting fee - -
Other long-term employee benefits 3.24 2.46
Staff Welfare z -
TOTAL 77.29 57.65

e) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
(i) Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
(ii) Balances payable of related parties at the reporting date are unsecured and settlement occurs through banking transactions. These balances are

interest free except unsecured loan as mentioned in Note no 9.1 of the financial statement.
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23

A. Fair Value Measurements
a) Financial instruments by category

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
FYTPL FYTOCI Amortised Cost FVTPL FYTOCI Amortised Cost

Financial Assets

Loan 1.63 3

Other Financial Assels - - 46,590.59 = 2 46,617.05

- - 46,592.22 - - 46,617.05

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - - 34,729.45 - # 37,241 .61
Other Financial Liabilities - - 400,60 = .7 2,004 42
Total - - 35,130.05 - - 39,246.03

b) Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets and fnancial liabilities are measured at fair value in these financial statement and are grouped into three levels of a fair value hierarchy The three Levels are
defined based on the observability of significant inputs 1o the measurement, as follows

Lewvel 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

c)The carrying values and fur values of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March, 2024 are as lollows:

Particulars Carrying Value Fair Value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

Loan 1.63 - - .63

Other Financial Assets 46,590.59 - - 46,590.59
Total 46,592.22 = A 46,592.22
Particulars Fair Value

Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Liabilitics at Amortized Cost
Borrowings 3472945 = H 34.729.45
Other Financial Liabilities 400.60 - - 400.60
Total 35,130.05 - = 35,130.05
d)The carrying values and fair values of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March, 2023 are as follows
Particulars Fair Value

Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assels at Amortized Cost '

Loan - - -

Other Financial Assets 46,617.05 - - 46,617.05
Total 46,617.05 - - 46,617.05
Particulars Fair Value

Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Borrowings 37,241.61 - - 37.,241.61
Other Financial Liabilities 2.004 42 - - 2,004.42
Total 39,246.03 - - 39,246.03

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to
the short-term maturities of these instruments.

(1) The fair value of the financial assets and hiabilities 15 included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. The
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

(11) Long term variable rate borrowings are evaluated by company on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors and other nisk factors. Based on this evaluation
the fair value of such payables are not materially different from their carrying amount.

* During the financial year 2023-24 and 2022-23, there were no transfers between Level |, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements.

B. Financial Risk Management
The Company’s principal financial liabilities borrowing and other financial liabilities. The Company’s principal financial assets include cash and cash equivalents and recoverable
from NHAI that derive directly from its operations. The Company’s activities expose it to some of the financial nisks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
a) Market Risk .
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because ol changes in market pnices. Market risk comprises Foreign currency
risk and Interest rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market nsk includes borrowings, trade receivables, trade payable and other non derivative financial instruments.
(i) Interest Rate Risk é
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial mstruments will fluctuate because of change in market interest rate. The company manages its
interest risk in accordance with the companies policies and risk objective. Financial instruments affected by interest rate risk includes deposits with banks. Interest rate risk on
these financial instruments are very low as interest rate is fixed for the period of financial instruments,

b) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Company. Credit risk arises principally from trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents with banks and other financial assets. The Company's exposure and credit ratings of
Its counterparties are continuously monitored by the management.

Trade Receivables and Other financial assets

S = ‘-.-'\
Gy ¥ " r - oy c 5 — S o=
The Company's exposure to credit nsk 15 influenced mainly by the charactenstics of the customer. The demographies of the customer, including the default of “'K@Bﬁ'\‘}ﬁl‘ld
j i . e . = : oY N
country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment. The Company derives revenue primarily from the Constructio 3 ylan ‘othigr
fLall!
financial assets primarily relates to the unbilled revenue under Service Concession Arrangement (SCA), The credit nisk arising from these trade receivable _py\e.liuaft‘;f-

limited because the counterparty is National Highways Authority of India (NHAI, azn autonomous agency of Governméent-of India, with capacity (o \ﬁ"’
7 5

therefore, the risk of default is very negligible or Nil o
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(1) Exposure to Credit Risk

(ii)

(1)

Particulars 31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Financial Assets for which allowance is measured using Lifetime Expeeted Credit Losses (LECL)

Other Non Current Financial Assets 41,351.59 41,805.33
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.181.60 1,433.87
Other Bank Balances 5,376.00 6,224.00
Loan 1.63 -
Other Current Financial Assets 5,239.00 481172
Financial Assets for which allowanee is measured using Simplified Approach

Trade Receivables 2.234.41 3,737.02

Provision for expected eredit losses

Mo impairment loss has been recognised dunng the reporting penod

Reconciliation of impairment loss provisions

Particulars 31-03-2024 31-03-2023

Opening Allowances = 2
Impairment loss recogmsed during the penod & =

Amount written-off during the period - -

Total = -

No significant changes in estimation techniques or assumptions were made during the reporting period.

¢) Liguidity risk

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and by having access to funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
lines. The treasury department regularly monitors the position of Cash and Cash Equivalents vis-a-vis projections. Assessment of maturity profiles of financial assets and financial
liabilities and maintenance of Balance Sheet liquidity ratios are considered while reviewing the liquidity position,

The Company’s investment policy and strategy are focused on preservation of capital and supporting the Company’s liquidity requirements. The senior Management of the
Company oversees its investment strategy and achieve its investment objectives. The policy requires investments generally to be investment grade, with the primary objective of
minimising the potential risk of principal loss.

The table below provides details regarding the significant financial liabilities as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

Particulars As on 31 March, 2024

Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2 Years and above
Borrowings 2.512.00 3,456 00 28.761.45
Trade payables 884,10 - -
Other finaneial liabilities 400.60 - -
Particulars As on 31 March, 2023

Less than 1 Year -2 yenrs 2 Years and above
Borrowings 2.,512.00 251200 3221761
Trade payables 55.40 - -
Other financial liabilities 2,004.42 - -

d) Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that
would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative
sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry,

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio.
Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.

The following table gives details in respect of revenues generated from top five projects.

Particulars For the year ended
31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Revenue from top 5 Projects 6,874.92 1.975.25

C. Capital Management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to shareholders. The capital structure of the
company is based on management's judgement of its strategic and day-to-day needs with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence. The
management and the Board of Directors monitor the return on capital. The Company may take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure.
Company has taken a unsecured loan during the FY 2023-24 s NIL (Previous Year Rs Rs 837 lacs ) [rom Holding co to finance ifs project.

Company has taken a term loan during the FY 2023-24 Rs NIL (Previous Year Rs Nil ) from Punjab National Bank to finance its project.
Debt Equity Ratio :-

Particulars ) 31-Mur-24 31-Mur-23
Borrowings (Note No. 9.1 &11.1) 34,729.45 37.241.61
Long Term Debt o 3472945] 3724161
Equity (Note No. 7) 17,300.00 17,300.00
Other Equity (Note No. 8) et 741710 502927
Tatal Equity 24,717.10 22,329.27
Debt Equity Ratio 1.41 1.67
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24 Impairment of assets
In compliance of Ind AS 36 "Impairment of Asscts”, the Company has reviewed the assets at vear-end for indication of impairment loss, if any, as per the accounting policy of the
Company. As there is no indication of impairment, no impairment loss has been recognised during the year.

25 Employee Benefits
a The employees in [reon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited are posted on Deputation/secondment basis from Ircon International Limited (Holding Company).
b. In terms of accounting policy of the Company (Note No. 2.2.7) and arrangement with the Holding Company, the provision for Retirement Benefits such as provident fund,

pension, gratuity, post retirement medical benefits, Leaves and other terminal benefits of nominated employees is being made by Holding company in terms of Ind AS-19. The
amount paid or payable towards provident fund, pension, gratuity, post retirement medical benefits, Leaves and other terminal benefits to the holding company are included in
"Employee Benefit Expenses” (Note 18).

¢. Provident Fund Contribution of the employees on nomination/secondment have heen regularly deposited by the holding company with its P.F Trust.

26 Revenue from contract with customers as per Ind AS-115
A, Disaggregation of Revenue

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers into operating segment and type of product or services

Type of Product or Services For the year ended March 31, 2024
Revenue as per Ind AS 115 Method for measuring Other Revenue Total as per
performance obligation Statement of Profit
and Loss
)
Domestic Foreign Total] Input Method | Output Method

Railways - . - 5 E 4 ~
Highway 6,874,092 B 6,874.02 6,87492 - - 6,874.92

Electrical = = - i - = =

Building - . - . 5 = :

Others . . R - . - -
Total 68742 - 6.874.92 6.874.92 : : 6.874.92

Out of the total revenue recognised under Ind AS 115 during the year, Rs 6874 92 lacs is recognised over a period of time and Rs Nil lacs recognised point in time,
Type of Product For the year ended March 31, 2023
Revenue as per Ind AS 115 Method for measuring Other Revenue | Total as per
performance obligation Statement of Profit
and Loss
Domestie Foreign Total| Input Method Output Method

) Railways = 2 & # = P
Highway 1,975.25 - 1,975.25 1,975.25 - - 1,975.25

Eleetrical » ¥ 5 - - - -

Building - Z 2 = = 5 =

Others - _— - - - . -
Total 1,975.25 = 1,975.25 1,975.25 - - 1,975.25

Out of the total revenue recognised under Ind AS 1135 during the year, Rs 1975 25 lacs is recognised over a period of time and Rs Nil lacs recogmised point in time.
B. Contract balances i
Particulars J . As at 31st March, | Asat 31st March,
: ' : . 2024 2023
Trade Recetvables (Note 5.1) . ) 223441 3,737.02
Contract Assets (Note 4 & 54) - | = 44,14640 | — 44,440.73
Contract Liabilities (Note 13) i 327.53 -
(1) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the customer profile is National Highway Authority of [ndia. The Company's average project execution eycle is around 24 to 36

months. General payment terms include mobilisation advance, monthly progress payments with a credit period ranging from 45 to 60 days.

(1) Contract Assets are recognised over the period in which services are performed to represent the Company's right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to
the customer. It includes balances due from customers under construction contracts that arise when the Company receives payments [rom customers as per terms of the contracts
however the revenue is recognised over the period under input method. Any amount previously recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables on satisfaction of
the condition attached i.c. future serviee which is necessary to achieve the billing milestone,
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(iii)

A

27

Movement in contract balances during the year

Particulars As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2024 2023
Contract assel at the Beginning of the year 44.440.73 | 48,366.43
Contract asset at the end of the ve ¢ - 44,146 40 + 44.440.73
Nelt increase/(decrease) -294.33 ]— -3,925.70

For the year 2023-24_ there has been nel decrease by 294 33 Lacs as compare (o previous vear decrease by Rs. 3925.70 lacs. Variation 15 due o recognition of revenue based on
input method whereas bills for work done are certified based on contract condition..

Contract liabilities relating to construction contracts are balances due to customers, these arise when a particular milestone payment exceeds the revenue recognised to date under
the input method and advance received in long term construction contracts. The amount of Advance received gets adjusted over the construction period as and when invoicing is
made to the customer.

Movement in contract balanccs during the year

Particulars Asat 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2024 2023
Contract liabilitics at the Beginning of the year - =
Contract liabilities at the end of the year 327.53 =
Net increase/decrease 32753 -

Set out below is the amount of revenue rec d from:

=3

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Amount included in contract lLiabilities at the beginning of the year

Performance obligation satisfied in previous years - -

Cost to oblain the contract
Amount recognised as asset as at 31st March, 2024 15 Rs. Nil (As at 31st March, 2023: Rs, Mil)
Amount of amortisation recognised in the statement of profit and loss during the year is Rs. Nil (FY 2022-23: Rs. Nil)

Performance obligation
Information about the Company’s performance obligations are summarised below:
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March are, as follows:

Particulars . As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Within one vear 15,836.95 16,143.01
More than one year to 2 years 5,239.28 8,075.06
More than 2 years 3217892 36,618.20
Total 53,255.15 60,836.27

* The amount disclosed above does not include variakle consideration which is constrained

A. Service Concession Arrangements

Public to private service concession arrangements are recorded in accordance with Appendix "C"- Service Concession Arrangements (Ind AS-115). Appendix "C" 15 applicable if:
a) The Grantor controls or regulates which services the operator should provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and at what price; and

b) The Grantor controls- through ownership, beneficial entitlement, or otherwise- any significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement.

If both of the above conditions are met simultaneously, a financial asset is recognized 1o the extent that the operator has an unconditional contractual right to receive cash or other
financial asset from or at the discretion of the Grantor for the service.

These financial assets are initially recognized at cost, which is understood as the fair value of the service provided plus other direct costs directly attributable to the operation.
They are then stated at amortized cost at the end of each financial year.

+ Ireon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IDHHL) has entered into service concession arrangement with National Highway Authority of India (NHAI) dated 19-06-2017. in

terms of whicte NHAI (the grantor) has authornized the company for development, maintenance and management of National Highway No. 48 (Old NH-4) including the section

“from Km 260.00 to Km 338.923 (approx. 78 923 Km) on Davanagere - Haveri Section of National Highway No. 48 (Old NH-4) in the State of Kamataka by six-laning thereof on

design, build, finance, operate and transfer basis . In terms of the said agreement IDHHL has an obligation to complete censtruction of the project of Six laning of Davanagere
Havert section and to keep the project assets in proper working condition including all projects assets whose lives have expired. The Project 1s under Annuity pattern.

The Concession period shall be 15 yéars commencing from the Commercial operation date. At the end of the concession period, the assets will be transferred back to National
Highway Authonity of India (NHAI).

In case of material breach in terms of agreement the NHAI and lrconDHHL have right to terminate the agreement if they are not able to cure the event of default in accordance
with such agreement.

Company has recognized financial asset of Rs.44146.40 Lakhs under service coneession agreement up to the period ended 31st March 2024 (31st March 2023 Rs 44,440.72
lakh)after taking into account the receivables due from NHAI on completion of milestone as per terms of the contract. The company has recognised revenue of Rs 6874.92 Lacs
for the pertod ended on 315t March 2024 (for the period ended on 3 1st March 2023 Rs Rs 1975.25 Lakh) on construction of Road under SCA and Operation Revenue as per Ind
AS - 115 related to "Revenue from Customers”. The company has recognized receivable under service concession arrangement and shown under Other Financial Assets which it

will receive as per terins of the contract based on the completion of milestone, as on 3 1st March 2024, Company has received Pravisional Completion certificate with effect from
————

May 28, 2021. AT
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B. Disclosure in terms of Appendix D of Ind AS 115

In terms of the disclosure required in Appendix [ in Ind AS -1 15 Revenue from Customers, as notified in the companies (Indian Accounting Standard) rules 2016, the amount

considered in the financial statements up to the balance shect date are as follows:-

T P As pt 3‘-“4'\'1 arch, | Asat lel:;JMarcll.
Contract Revenue Recognized 6.874.92 1,975.25
Aggregate amount of cost incurred 0.874.92 1,299.38
Amount of advance received from Client - -
Amount of retention by Client - -
Profit/( Loss) recognised during the period for exchange of construction service for a financial asset 0.00 67587
Gross amount due from Client for Contract Works 223441 3,737.02

Disclosures pursuant to amendment in Schedule HI of the Companies Act 2013:

The MCA vide notification dated 24th March 2021 has amended Schedule (11 to the Compames Act. 2013 n respect of certain disclosures wiich are applicable from 1st April
2021 The Company has incorporated the changes as per the said amendment in the financial statements and below disclosures are made in compliance of the said amendment

(1) The Company has no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the
financial year ending 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023
(i) The Company has nat traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year ending 3| st March 2024 and 3 1st March 2023,
() The Company do not have any Benami property as on 315t March 2024 and 3 1st March 2023, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
company for holding any Benami property.
() The Company do not have any prior period errors in financial year ending on 31st March 2024 and 3 1st March 2023 to be disclosed separately in statement of
changes in equity
(v) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is vet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period in the financial year ending 31st
March 2024 and 315t March 2023,
(vi) During the financial year 2023-24 and 2022-23, The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Intermedianies) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfl of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behall of the Ulumate Beneficiaries
(vin) During the financial year 2023-24 and 2022-23, The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend ar invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficianes) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
(viii) The Campany has granted multi purpose advance to Chief Financial officer of Rs 2.00 lacs (O/s Balance Rs 163 lacs) in the financial year ending 31st March
2024 and Nil in previous year 3 1st March 2023
(i) The Company does not have any immovable properties as at 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023,
(x} The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority in the financial year
2023-24 and 2022-23.
(xi) Company 1s not required to subrmit statement of current assets with the bank and therefore reconciliation of the statement filed by the company with bank and
the books of accounts is not applicable.
(xii) The Company docs not have any transactions in financial year 2023-24 and 2022-23, where the company has not used the borrowings from banks and financial
institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date
(xii1) The Company have not entered into any scheme(s) of arrangements during the year ending 3 1st March 2024 and period ending 3 1st March 2023,
(xiv) The Company has not entered in any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,
(xv) Company has not received any grants and donations during the year ending 31st March 2024 and period ending 31st March 2023,
(xvi) The Company does not have any Capital Work- in- Progress, [nvestment Property, Intangible Assets and Intangible Assets under Development as at 3 1st
March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023
(xvii) During the year 2023-24 and 2022-23 the company has not revalued any of its Property, plant and equipment

y.
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(xviif) The following accounting ratias are disclosed
Particulars Numerator Denominator March 31,2024 | March 31,2023 | % change | Reason for change
more than 25%
urrent ratio Currcit Assels Current Liabilities 4.73 4,22 12.09% NA
Debt-equity ratio Total Debt Sharcholder's Equity 1.41 1.67 -1557% NA
Debt service  § Earnings for debl service = Net| Debt service = Interest & Lease Payments + 099 1.16 -14.66% NA
coverige ralio profit after taxes + Non-cash Principal Repayments
operaling expenses
Return on equity Net Profits after taxes — & P :
ape Sha NE -23.08% t
intii Prefirene Dividend Average Shareholder’s Equity 010 013 3.08% NA
Inventory ~ Costof goods sold Average [nvenlory NA
i : - . Due to increase in
Trade receivables| Net credit sales = Gross eredit =
; Average Trade Receivable F 4 8%
e e siless Sales feti Average Trade Receivable 30 0.55 318.18% revenue in current
year
Trade pavable Met credit purchases = Gross l?ul}:{to PHEICERTIA
Rt credit purchases - purchase Average Trade Payables 1324 105 1160.63% kbl ot d
turnover ratio i reduction in trade
payable
; ; : ; i Due to increase in
Net capital Met sales = Total sales - sales | Working capital = Current assets — Current . .
apia 3 B e 0.44 03| 23846% revenue in current
Llurnover ratio return liabilities
year
Due to increase in
Nel profil ratio Net Profit Net sales = Total sales - sales return 0.35 1.34 -73 B&% Work Exp & Finance
cost in current year
Return on capital | Earnings before interest and | Capital Employed =.Tang.ib1c Ni:'l Wl_:rlh f o3 013 0.00% RiA
employed taxes Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability
. Due to increase in
Return on ;
invell::-:\em Interest (Finance Income) Investment 0.06 0.05 26.73% lnance income in
: current year

29 Disclosure as per Ind AS 21 *The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’
The amount of exchange differences (net) credited/debited to the statement of profit and loss 1s Nil.

‘;j Corporate Social Responsibility
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 | the Company is required to spend, in every financial year, at least two per cent of the average net profits of the Company made
during the three immediately preceding financial years in accordance with its CSR Policy. The details of CSR expenses for the year are as under

A. Amount required to be spent on CSR Activities

For the yvear ended

For the year ended

Particulars
31st March 2024 3l1st March 2023
Gross amount required 1o be spent by the Company duringthe year 19.30 6.90
Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 29,30 6.90
B. Amount spent on CSR Activities
. For the year ended 31st March 2024 For the year ended 31st March 2023
Particulars — - — - "
Paid in Cash Yet to paid Total "aid in Cash Yet to paid Total
On Construction/nequisition of any asset* » - - - - -
On purposes other than above 19.32 - 29.32 6.94 - 6.94
Total | 29.32 f_ = 29.32 6.94 - 6.94

C. Break-up of the CSR expenses under major heads is as under:

Particulars

For the year ended
st March 2024

For the year ended
31st March 24023

Ensuring environmental

Sports
Others (including Other

sustamability

Admin Cost)

(Contribution to Prime Minister CARES Fund for fighting against COVID 19
Lradicating hunger, poverty & malnutnition, promoting preventive healthcare & sanitation & making available sate dnnking water

Promoting Education, including special education and emplovment enhancing vocation skills ¢specially among children

Setting up homes and hostels for women and orphans, Setting up old age homes, day care centres and such other facilities fo

29.32

6.94

Tatal

29.32

6.94 |




ITRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017GO1317401
Nates to the Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

All amounts in Lakh unless otherwise stated

al

32

33

0. Details related to unspent obligations:

For the year ended | For the year ended

Particulars 31st March 2024 J1st March 2023

Unspent hhl-:;nll in relation to:
- Ongoing project (#)
- Other than ongoing project (#)

# Ongoing Project:

Opening Amount Amount spent during the year Closing Balance
Balance In Separate |required to be] From Company's | From Separate CSR
CSR Unspent | spent during bank Afe Unspent Ale With Company |In Separate CSR
With Company Ale the yvear Unspent Alc

## Other than ongoing project:

Opening
Balance Amount deposited in

Specified Fund of Sch. VII Amount required to be spent during the [Amount spent

Closing Balance

1 5 "
within 6 months year during the year
E. Details related to spent / unspent obligations:
Particulars
For the year For the year
ended ended 31st

3ist March 2024  March 2023

Opening Balance

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year (as per (a) above) 2930 65.90
Amount spent by the Company during the year (as per (b) above)* 2932 6.94
Shortfall/(Excess) amount spent by the company (0.02)) (0.04)

* There are no related party transaction in respect to CSR expenditure.

F, Other disclosure:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st
March 2023 March 2022

Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the company n NA NA

relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard (1)

Where a provision is made with respeet to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual NA NA
obligation, the movements in the provision

Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assels:

For the year N N
Particulars ended P; lr ltI:.[yea[: ;:;‘;?j
31st March 2024 | 750 VATC
(I) Contingent Liabilities:
(a) Claims against the company not acknowledge as debt
Disputed Tax Demand 3472 Nil
(b) Guarantees excluding financial guarantee: E Nil il
(c) Other money for which the company is contingently liable. Nil Nil
(I1) Contingent Assets: s Nil Nil

Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts rematning to be executed on capital account and other is Rs Mil Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. Nil Laecs)
b) Other Commitments: Rs. 9507 11 lakh (Previous Year 15720 88 lakh).

Segment Reporting:

(i) General Information

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterpnise for which discrete financial information is available which is being evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM) in deciding how to allocate resourccs and assessing performance. The Board of Dircetors of the Company is the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM). The Company 1s engaged in the business of infrastructure development in the state of Kamataka and the Chiel Operating Decision Maker (CODM) monttors the
operating results of the business as a single segment, hence no separate segment needs to be disclosed in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108,

(ii) Information about geographical information
As the Company operates in a single geographical segment i e. India hence no separate geographical segment is disclosed.

(iii) Information about major customer
Revenue of Rs 6874.92 Lakhs (P.Y Rs 1975.25 lakh) are denived from a single customer e NHAI which is more than 10% of the Company's total reven

I11. Interest in other Entitics: Rs NIL (Previous Year NI 78
T
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Disclosure regarding Leases:

{a) Company as a Lessee

The Company has no leasing arrangement which are non-cancellable in nature. Accordingly, no night of use assets and lease liabilities have been recognised by the Company.

The Company has taken Office on lease with lease terms of 12 months or more however lease can be terminated on one month rotice by either side therefore Company applies the
‘short-term lease” recognition exemptioas for such leases without any penally

The following are the amounts recognised in Statement of profit and loss:

Particulars For the period
ended For the period ended
31st March 31st March 2023
. 2024
Expense relating to short-term leases (Reter Note 17) 331 3.01

(a) Company as a Lessor
Company has no leasing armangement as a lessor.

Disclosure pursuant to section 186 of the Companies Act 2013:
There are no loans given, investments made and guarantee are made by the Company during the period.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated March 31, 2023 (o amend the following Ind AS which are
effective for annual periods beginning on or atter Apnl 1, 2023, The Company applied for the firsi-time these amendments:

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS §

The amendments clanfy the disiinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in accouniing policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities
use measurement lechnigques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial stalements

(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their “significant’ accounting
policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material” accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures

he amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company's
financial statements.

(iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilitics arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS. 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions thal give nse 1o equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences such as leases

As a result of these amendments. the Company has to recognize a separate deferred tax asset in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability in relation to its right-of-use
assets. Since, these balances.qualify for offset as per the requirements of paragraph 74 of Ind AS 12, there 1s no impact 1n the balance sheet

Other disclosures

(1) In the opinion of the management, the value of assets on realisation in the ordinary course of business, will not be less than ihe value at which these are stated in the Balance
Sheet.

(if) Figures rounded off to the neatest rupees in Lakh.

(1ii) The Company has a system of obtaming periodic confirmation of balances from banks-and other parties. So far as trade/other pavables and loans and advances are concerned, the
balance confirmation letters were sent 10 the partics. Balances of some of the Trade Receivables, Other Assets, Trade and Other Payables are subject to confirmations/reconciliations
and consequential adjustment, it any Reconciliations are carried out on on-going basis. However, management does not expect to have any material financial impact of such pending
confirmations / reconciliabions.

(i) Certain prior periods amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current period presentations. These reclassifications have no effect on the reported results of
operations. Also, previous year figures are shown under bracket () to differentiate from current year figures

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
G A CS & Agsociates : Ircon Davanagere Haven Highway Limilﬂ:}l
Chartered A¢gcountants

ICAI Firm . No. : 005193N

) Yeos S
CA Shashi Gupta Yogesh Kumar Mista
Partner Directort
1CAL Membership No 084110 DIN-07654014
Place : New Delhi
Prdeep Baisoya Goutam Kumar Mishra Mandal
Company Secretary Chiel Executive officer Financial Officer

Date :10.05.2024
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

The preparation of financial statements of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the financial
reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor
appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139 (5)
of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under
Section 143 of the Act, based on independent audit in accordance with the
standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated
to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 10 May 2024.

[, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided
not to conduct supplementary audit of the financial statements of Ircon
Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 under
Section 143 (6)(a) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place: New Delhi Dr. Nil swami
Dated:c2 .07.2024 Director General of Audit
Railway Commercial, New Delhi
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